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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 A For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2024 A ORA A &~ A A TRANSITION
REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 A Forthe transition
period from to A A Commission file number 000-55497A Duos Technologies Group, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) A Florida 65-0493217 (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation
or organization) (IRS Employer Identification No.) A 7660 Centurion Parkway, Suite 100, Jacksonville,Florida
32256(AddressA ofA principalA executiveA offices)A (904) 296-2807(Registranta€™s telephone number, includingarea
code)A Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) ofthe Act:A Title of each class A Trading Symbol(s) A Name of
each exchange on which registered Common Stock, par value $0.001 A DUOT A The Nasdaq Capital Market A Indicate
by checkmark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subjectto such filing requirements for the past 90

days.A YesA a’A A A NoA &4"A A Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 ofRegulation S-T (A§232.405 of this chapter) during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was requiredto submit such

files).A YesA a™’A A A NoA &"A A Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer,an
accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See definitions
of 4€celargeaccelerated filer,a€ a€ceaccelerated filer,a€ a€cesmaller reporting company,a€ and a&€eemerging growth
companya€in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.A Large accelerated filerA &~ A Accelerated filerA 4~ Non-accelerated
filerA 8™’ A Smaller reporting companyA 4~ Emerging growth companyA &"A A A A Ifan emerging growth company,
indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complyingwith any
new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.A 4”A Indicate by




checkmark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).A

YesA 4"A A A NoA 4™A A As of November 13, 2024, the registrant has one classof common equity, and the number of
shares outstanding of such common equity is 8,410,625.AA A A A A A A TABLE OF CONTENTSA PART I &€“
FINANCIAL INFORMATION A A A Item 1. Financial Statements 1 A A A Item 2. Managementa€™s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 35 A A A Ttem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk 47 A A A Item 4. Controls and Procedures 47 A A A PART II 4€“ OTHER INFORMATION A A A
Item 1. Legal Proceedings 48 A A A Item 1A. Risk Factors 48 A A A Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities
and Use of Proceeds 48 A A A Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities 48 A A A Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures 48
A A A Item 5. Other Information 48 A A A Ttem 6. Exhibits 49 A SIGNATURES 50 Ai A A A PART I FINANCIAL
INFORMATIONItem 1. Financial Statements.A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETSAA AAA AA AA September 30,AA December 31,A AA
2024A A 2023A A A (Unaudited)AA AA ASSETSA AAA AA ACURRENT ASSETS:A AAAA AAA A CashA
$613,594A A $2,441,842A A Restricted cashA A 32,519A A A 4€”A A Accounts receivable, netA A 1,601,152A A

A 1,462,463A A Contract assetsA A 609,008A A A 641,947A A InventoryA A 1,028,387A A A 1,526,165A A Prepaid
expenses and other current assetsA A 310,869A A A 184,478A A Note Receivable, netA A 159,375A A A4€”A AA
AAAA AAA ATotal Current AssetsA A 4,354,904A A A 6,256,895A AA AAAA AAA A Property and equipment,
netA A 2,318,233A A A 726,507A A Operating lease right of use assetA A 4,117,471A A A 4,373,155A A Security
depositA A 500,000A A A 550,000A AA AAAA AAA AOTHERASSETS:A AAAA AAA A lntangible Asset, netA
A 10,140,238A A A a€”A A Note Receivable, netA A a€”A A A 153,750A A Patents and trademarks, netA

A 128,793A A A 129,140A A Software development costs, netA A 465,228A A A 652,838A A Total Other AssetsA

A 10,734,259A A A935,728A AA AAAA AAA ATotal AssetsA $22,024,867A A $12,842,285A AA AAAA AAA
A LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITYA AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAA ACURRENT LIABILITIES:A
AAAA AAA A Accounts payableA $1,727,190A A $595,634A A Notes payable - financing agreementsA

A 128,404A A A41,976A A Accrued expensesA A 323,593A A A 164,113A A Operating lease obligations-current
portionA A 793,658A A A 779,087A A Contract liabilities, currentA A 2,982,213A A A 1,666,243A AA AAAA

A A A A Total Current LiabilitiesA A 5,955,058A A A 3,247,053A AA AAAA AAA A Contract liabilities, less
current portionA A 7,947,755A A A 4€”A A Notes payableA A 1,647,995A A A 4€”A A Operating lease obligations,
less current portionA A 3,961,590A A A 4,228,718A AA AAAA AAA A Total LiabilitiesA A 19,512,398A A
A7,475,771A AA AAAA AAA A Commitments and Contingencies (Note 5)A AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAA

A STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:A AAAA AAA Preferred stock: $0.001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized,
9,441,000 shares available to be designated A AAAA AAA Series A redeemableconvertible preferred stock,
$10stated value per share, 500,000shares designated; Oand Oissued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively, convertible into common stock at $6.30per shareA A 4€”A A A A 4€”A A Series B
convertible preferred stock, $1,000 stated value per share, 15,000 shares designated; 0 and 0 issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, convertible into common stock at $7 per shareA A a€”A A A
A 4€”A A Series C convertible preferred stock, $1,000 stated value per share, 5,000 shares designated; 0 and O issued
and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, convertible into common stock at $5.50
per shareA A 4€”A A A 4€”A Series D convertible preferred stock, $1,000 stated value per share, 4,000 shares
designated; 1,399 and 1,299 issued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively,
convertible into common stock at $3.00 per shareA A 1A A A 1A Series E convertible preferred stock, $1,000 stated
value per share, 30,000 shares designated; 13,625 and 11,500 issued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively, convertible into common stock at $2.61 and $3.00 per share, respectivelyA A 14A A
A 12A Series F convertible preferred stock, $1,000 stated value per share, 5,000 shares designated; 0 and 0 issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, convertible into common stock at $6.20 per
shareA A a€”"AAA Aa€”A A Common stock: $0.001 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized, 8,051,189 and
7,306,663 shares issued, 8,049,865 and 7,305,339 shares outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
respectivelyA A 8,049A A A 7,306A A Additional paid-in-capitalA A 73,623,552A A A 69,120,199A A Accumulated
deficitA A (70,961,695)A A (63,603,552) A Sub-totalA A 2,669,921A A A 5,523,966A A Less:A A Treasury stock (1,324
shares of common stock at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023) AA AA A (157,452 A)AA AA A (157,452
A') A Total Stockholders' EquityA A 2,512,469A A A 5,366,514A AA AAAA AAA A Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' EquityA $22,024,867A A $12,842,285A A A A See accompanying condensed notes to theunaudited
consolidated financial statements.AAA 1A A A A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS(Unaudited) AA AAA AAA AAA AA AA AA
For the Three Months EndedSeptember 30, AA A A For the Three Months EndedSeptember 30, AA A A For the Nine
Months EndedSeptember 30, AA A A For the Nine Months EndedSeptember 30, AA A A 2024A A 2023A A 2024A A
2023A AA AAA AAA AAA AA REVENUES:A AAA AAA AAA AA ATechnology systemsA $1,686,456A A
$705, 849A A $2,221, 310A A $3,404, 107A A Services and consultmgA A 1,552,454A A A 825, 074AA A 3,598,776A A
A2541,163A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA ATotal RevenuesA A 3,238,910A A A 1,530,923A

A5,820,086A A A5,945270A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA ACOST OF REVENUES:A AAAA AAAA
AAAA AAA A Technology systemsA A 947,563A A A 883,836AA A2,311,912A A A 3,723,151A A Services and
consultingA A 1,372,248A A A 420,499A A A 2,709,007A A ‘A1,217,022A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA

A Total Cost of RevenuesA A 2,319,811AA A 1,304,335AA A5,020,919AA A4,940,173A AA AAAA AAAA
AAAA AAA AGROSS MARGINA A919,099A A A226,588AA A799,167AA A 1,005097A AA AAAA AAAA
AAAA AAA AOPERATING EXPENSES:A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA A Sales and marketingA A 471,411A A

>

AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA AAAA Interest expenseA A (116, 396)A A (1,406)A A (117, 991)A A (5,816)

A A A A Change in fair value of warrant liabilitiesA A 245,980A A A 46€”A A A 245,980A A A 4€”A A A A A Gain on
extinguishment of warrant liabilitiesA A 379,626A A A a€”A A A 379, 626 a€”A A A A A Other income, netA
A9,407A A A24,647AA A31,984AA A191,022A AA AAAA AAA A Total Other Income
(Expenses), netA A518,617A A A23,241AA A 539,599A A A 185,206A AAAA AAA ANET

LOSSA $(1,401,663)A $(2,947,736)A $(7,358,143)A $(8,080,819)AA A A AAA ABasic and

>
> >) > :>>
> > > >
B> > B> >



Diluted Net Loss Per ShareA $(0.18)A $(0.41)A $(0.98)A $(1.12)AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA AA AAAA
AAAA AAAA AAA AWeighted Average Shares-Basic and DilutedA A 7,724,170A A A 7,240,632A A
A 7,494,772A A A 7,189,256A A See accompanying condensed notes to the unaudited consolidatedfinancial
statements.A A 2A A A A ADUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESSTATEMENTS OF CHANGES
IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITYFor the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30,2024 and 2023(Unaudited) A A
AAA AAA AAA AAAAAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA AA Preferred
Stock BA A Preferred Stock CA A Preferred Stock DA A Preferred Stock EA A Preferred Stock FA A Common
StockA A Additional]AA AA AAA AA AA # of SharesA A AmountA A # of SharesA A AmountA A # of SharesA A
AmountA A # of SharesA A AmountA A # of SharesA A AmountA A # of SharesA A AmountA A Paid-in- CapltalA A
Accumulated DeficitA A Treasury StockA A TotalA AA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA
AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA Balance December 31, 2022A A a€"A A $a€"A A Aae”AA $a€”AA
A1,299AA $1AA Aa€"AA $a€”A A A age”
$(157,452)A $4,050,471A AA AAA
A
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A 5,000A A $5A A A 7,248,455A A $7,248A A $66,267,057A A $(60,442,653)A $(157,452)A $5,674,210A A A A See
accompanying condensed notes to the unaudited consolidatedfinancial statements.A A 3A A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES
GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESSTATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITYFor the Three and Nine
Months Ended September 30,2024 and 2023 (Continued)(Unaudited) AA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA
AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA AA Preferred Stock BA A Preferred Stock CA A
Preferred Stock DA A Preferred Stock EA A Preferred Stock FA A Common StockA A AdditionalA A AA AAA AA
A A # of SharesA A AmountA A # of SharesA A AmountA A # of SharesA A AmountA A # of SharesA A AmountA A
# of SharesA A AmountA A # of SharesA A AmountA A Paid-in- CapltalA A Accumulated DeficitA A Treasury

A
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AAA Netlo r the three months ended September 30, 2024A Aa€"AA A4€"AA A
a€”A A Aa€”’AA Aae”AA Aae’AA Aa€"AA Aa€”AA Aa€"AA A €: A A a€”
1,

AA A A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Balance September 30, 2024A A a€”AA $a€"A A Aae”A A $a€”A
A 1,399A A $1AA A13,625A A $14A A Aa€”AA $a€”AA A 8,051,189A A $8,049A A $73,623,553A A
$(70,961,695)A $(157,452)A $2,512,469A A A See accompanying condensed notes to the unaudited
consolidatedfinancial statements. A A 4A A A A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS(Unaudited) AA AAA AA A A For the Nine
Months EndedA A A September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A AA AAA AA Cash from operating activities:A AAA A
A A A Net lossA $(7 358, 143)A $(8,080,819) AdJustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:A AAA A A A A Depreciation and amortizationA A 1,472,965A A A 393,057A Stock based compensationA
A 281,405A A A 499,590A Stock issued for servicesA A 122,500A A A 105,565A Amortization of debt discount related
to warrant liabilitiesA A 73,601A A A 4€”A Fair value of warrant liabilitiesA A (245,980)A A 4€”A Gain on settlement
of warrant liabilitiesA A (379,626)A A 4€”A Amortization of operating lease right of use assetA A 255,684A A
A 235,217A Changes in assets and liabilities:A AAAA AAA A A A Accounts receivableA A (138,689)A
A 3,159,389A A A A Note receivableA A (5,625)A A (151,875) A A A Contract assetsA A 32,939A A A (921,009)
AAA InventoryA A 197,777A A A (97,552) A A A Security depositA A 50,000A A A 50,000A A A A Prepaid expenses
and other current assetsA A 300,271A A A 543,793A A A A Accounts payableA A1,131,552AA A (1 670,625)
A A A Accrued expensesA A 159,482A A A (178,081) AAA Operating lease obligationA A (252,557)A A (154, 653)
A A A Contract liabilitiesA A (1,897, 703)A A 630,931A AA AAAA AAA Netcash used in operating activitiesA
A (6 200,147)A A (5,637,072) AA AAAA AAA Cash flows from 1nvest1ng activities:A AAAA AAA
A A A A Purchase of patents/trademarksA A (8,105)A A (58,208) A A A A Purchase of software developmentA
A ae”A A A (640,609) A A A A Purchase of fixed assetsA A (1,547,439)A A (199,618) AA AAAA AAA Net cash used
in investing activitiesA A (1,555,544)A A (898, 435) AA AAAA AAA Cash flows from financing activities: A AAAA
AA A A A A Repayments on financing agreementsA A (340,232)A A (395,221) A A A Repayment of finance leaseA
A ae”A A A (22,851) A A A Proceeds from notes payableA A 2,200,000A A A 4€”A A A A Proceeds from warrant
exercisesA A 899,521A A A 4€”A A A A Proceeds from common stock issuedA A 197,011A A A 4€”A A A A Stock
issuance costA A (78,688)A A (17,645) A A A Proceeds from shares issued under Employee Stock Purchase PlanA
A 87,348A A A 117,048A A A A Proceeds from preferred stock issuedA A 2,995,002A A A 9,000,000A AA AAAA
A A A Net cash provided by financing activitiesA A 5,959,962A A A 8,681,331A AA AAAA AAA Netincrease
(decrease) in cashA A (1,795,729)A A 2,145,824A Cash, beginning of periodA A 2,441,842A A A 1,121,092A Cash,
end of periodA $646,113A A $3,266,916A AA AAAA AAA The following table provides a reconciliation of cash,
cash equivalents and restricted cash reported on the accompanying balance sheet to the amount presented in the above
statement of cash flows: AA AA AA AA AAAAAA AA AA AAAA AAA Cash and cash equivalentsA
$A 613,594A A $A 3,266,916A Restricted cashA A 32,519A A A 4€”A Cash, end of perlodA $646,113A A
$3,266,916A AA A AAA AAA Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:A AAAA AAA Interest paidA
$1,596A A $5,816A Taxes paldA $5 432A A $a€”A AA AAAA AAA Supplemental Non-Cash Investing and
Financing Activities: A AAAA AAA Debt discount for warrant 11ab111tyA $625,606A A $3€”A Notes issued for
financing of insurance premiumsA $426,661A A $458,452A Transfer of inventory to fixed assetsA $300,000A A
$a€”A Intangible asset acquired with contract liabilityA $11,161,428A A $a€”A A A See accompanying condensed
notes to the unauditedconsolidated financial statements.AA 5A A A A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2024
(Unaudited) A A NOTE 1 4€“ NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIESA Nature of OperationsA Duos Technologies Group, Inc., through its operating subsidiaries, Duos
Technologies, Inc. (G4€ceDuoséd€), Duos Edge Al, Inc.(3€eEdgea€), and Duos Energy Corporation, which was formed in
July 2024 (collectively the a€ceCompanya€), is acompany that specializes in machine vision and artificial intelligence to
analyze fast moving objects such as trains, trucks,automobiles, and aircraft. This technology can help improve safety,
maintenance, and operating metrics.A The Company is the inventor of the Railcar InspectionPortal (RIP) and is
currently the rail industry leader for machine vision/camera wayside detection systems that include the use of
Artificiallntelligence at speeds up to 125 mph. The RIP inspects a train at full speed from the top, sides, and bottom
looking at FRA/AAR mandatedsafety inspection points. The system also detects illegal riders, which can assist law
enforcement agencies. Each railcar is scannedwith machine vision cameras and other sensors from the top, sides, and
bottom, where images are produced within seconds of the railcarpassing. These images can then be used by the
customer to help prevent derailments, improve maintenance operations, and assist with security.The Company self-
performs all aspects of hardware, software, Information Technology (a€ceITa€), and Artificial Intelligence
developmentand engineering. The Company maintains significant intellectual property and continues to be awarded
additional patents for both the technologyand methodologies used. The Company also has a proprietary portfolio of
approximately 53 Artificial Intelligence a€eUse Casesa€that automatically flag defects. The Company has deployed this
system with several Class 1 railroads and one major passenger carrier andanticipates an increased demand in the
future from railcar operators, owners, shippers, transit railroads as well as law enforcement agencies.A During the
second quarter of 2024, the Company initiateda study to determine how to expand its market reach into non-rail
markets. Using the information technology (IT) investments already madeinto the RIP in conjunction with the recently
awarded patents for both methodology and artificial intelligence, the Company has determinedthat its use of Edge Data
Centers for the processing of large volumes of image data has broad applicability to enabling local, high-
speedprocessing in similar environments as being undertaken at the 13 current RIPs, that is, in rural and underserved
areas. Accordingly, theCompany announced its expansion into the market for the provision of bespoke Edge Data
Centers (EDCs) early in the third quarter, targetingcertain markets including remote education and healthcare facilities
as well as other applications where high-speed, local processingis required.A The Company has also developed the
Automated LogisticsInformation System (a€ceALISa€) which automates gatehouse operations where trucks enter and
exit large logistics and intermodalfacilities. This solution also incorporates sensors and data points as necessary for
each operation and directly interconnects with backendlogistics databases and processes to streamline and significantly
improve operations and security and, importantly, dramatically improvethroughput on each lane on which the
technology is deployed. The Company is not currently actively pursuing further customers for ALISbut will continue to
analyze the potential market and, depending on market demand, may deploy an upgraded Truck Inspection Portal
(TIP)which uses the same technology and lessons learned from the ALIS and RIP systems at some point in the



future.A The Companya€™s strategy for the rail industryis to expand beyond our existing customer base in the Class 1
and major passenger transit market and we expect to add additional usersin the short line, industrial and regional
transit markets in North America. In addition, we plan to expand our subscription offeringto car owners and shippers
and expand operations to meet the demand from international customers. The Company is prepared to respond
andscale, if necessary, to react to increased demand for potential regulations that may be imposed around wayside
detection technology. Inthe future the Company may put more emphasis on the trucking and intermodal sector with an
updated Truck Inspection Portal solution. TheCompany continues to focus on operational and technical excellence,
customer satisfaction, and maintaining a highly skilled and performance-basedwork force. The Company continues to
investigate and pursue market opportunities for subsets of its technology including deployment andmanagement of
Edge Data Centers, a fundamental component of the distributed, rapid response data analysis used in the

RIP.A Starting in the second half of 2024, the Company opened two new initiativesfocused on the rapidly growing
market for data centers and the associated power generation needed to support the growth in this marketspace. Duos,
through its technology and its staff, has extensive experience in both disciplines and plans to monetize these assets
throughtwo new subsidiaries. The Company formed Duos Energy Corporation given the overwhelming demand for
power solutions from Data Center HyperScalers who also operate within the Edge Data Center space. The new
subsidiary is focused on the burgeoning market for energy to power data centersand is currently engaged in some
consulting for organizations looking to acquire power generation assets. It is also expected to engagein operations work
in this space up to and including the build out of data center power plants.A 6A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30,
2024(Unaudited)A A A A A Basis of PresentationA The accompanying unaudited consolidatedfinancial statements have
been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (4€ceGAAPA€) forinterim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 8 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do notinclude all
of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of
management,all adjustments (all of which are of a normal recurring nature) considered necessary for a fair presentation
have been included.Operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of
the results that may be expectedfor the year ending December 31, 2024 or for any other future period. These unaudited
consolidated financial statements and theunaudited condensed notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and notes theretoincluded in the Companya€ ™s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2023 filed with the Securities andExchange Commission (the &€ SECa&€) on April 1,
2024.A Principles of ConsolidationA The unaudited consolidated financial statementsinclude Duos Technologies Group,
Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Duos Technologies, Inc., Duos Edge Al, Inc. and Duos EnergyCorporation. All
inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.A Use of EstimatesA The preparation of
financial statements in conformitywith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions thataffect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidatedfinancial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from theseestimates. The most
significant estimates in the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the initial valuationof a
non-monetary transaction with a customer, valuation of intangible assets for impairment analysis, allowance on
accounts receivableand notes receivable, valuation of common stock warrants received in exchange for an asset sale,
valuation of deferred tax assets, valuationof other long-lived assets, estimates of net contract revenues and the total
estimated costs to determine progress towards contract completion,valuation of inventory, estimates of the valuation of
right of use assets and corresponding lease liabilities, valuation of warrants issuedwith debt, valuation of warrant
liabilities and valuation of stock-based awards. We base our estimates on historical experience and onvarious other
assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgmentsabout the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from theseestimates.A A Concentrations A Cash ConcentrationsA Cash is maintained at financial
institutions and attimes, balances may exceed federally insured limits. We have not experienced any losses related to
these balances. As of September 30,2024, the balance in one financial institution exceeded federally insured limits by
approximately $119,570. Any loss incurred or a lackof access to such funds could have a significant adverse impact on
the Companya€™s consolidated financial condition, results of operationand cash flows.A Significant Customers and
Concentration of Credit RiskA The Company had certain customerswhose revenue individually represented 10% or
more of the Companya€™s total revenue, or whose accounts receivable balances individuallyrepresented 10% or more
of the Companya€™ s total accounts receivable, as follows:A For the nine months ended September 30, 2024,
threecustomers accounted for 41%, 29% and 11% of revenues. For the nine months ended September 30, 2023, two
customers accounted for 55%, and29% of revenues. In all cases, there are no minimum contract values stated. Each
contract covers an agreement to deliver a Railcar InspectionPortal or services which, once accepted, must be paid in
full, with 30% or more being due and payable prior to delivery. The balancesof the contracts are for service and
maintenance, which may be paid annually in advance with revenues recorded ratably over the contractperiod.A A A 7A
DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A A At September 30, 2024, two customers accounted
for52%, and 32% of accounts receivable. At December 31, 2023, three customers accounted for 52%, 25% and 14% of
accounts receivable. Muchof the credit risk is mitigated since all the customers listed here are Class 1 railroads with a
history of timely payments to us.A A A Geographic ConcentrationA For the nine months ended September 30, 2024,
approximately43% of revenue was generated from three customers outside of the United States. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2023, approximately37% of revenue was generated from three customers outside of the United
States.A Significant Vendors and Concentration of CreditRiskA In some instances, the Company relies on a limitedpool
of vendors for key components related to the manufacturing of its subsystems. These vendors are primarily focused on
camera, server,and lighting technologies integral to the Companya€™s solution. Where possible, the Company seeks
multiple vendors for key componentsto mitigate vendor concentration risk.A Fair Value of Financial Instruments and
Fair Value MeasurementsA The Company follows Accounting Standards Codification(a€oeASCa€) 820, a€ceFair Value
Measurements and Disclosuresa€ (a€eASC 820a€), for assets and liabilities measuredat fair value on a recurring basis.
ASC 820 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally acceptedaccounting
principles that requires the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and
expands disclosureabout such fair value measurements.A ASCA 820 defines fair value as the price thatwould be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the



measurementdate. Additionally, ASCA 820 requires the use of valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize theuse of unobservable inputs.A These inputs are prioritized below:A A Level 1: Observable inputs
such as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.A Level 2: Observable market-based
inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.A Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there is
little or no market data, which require the use of the reporting entitya€™s own assumptions that the market
participants would use in the valuation of the asset or liability based on the best available information. A The Company
analyzes all financial instruments withfeatures of both liabilities and equity under the Financial Accounting Standard
Boarda€™s (a€0eFASBa€) accounting standardfor such instruments. Under this standard, financial assets and liabilities
are classified in their entirety based on the lowest levelof input that is significant to the fair value measurement.A The
estimated fair value of certain financial instruments,including accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and notes payable are carried at historical cost basis,which approximates their fair values because of
the short-term nature of these instruments.A The changes in level 3 valuations for the three andnine months ended
September 30, 2024 was as follows: Schedule of fair value of financial instrumentsA AA A A September 30,A A A
2024A December 31, 2023A $4€”A Issuance of Warrant liabilitiesA A 625,606A Change in fair valueA A (245,980)
Gain on extinguishmentA A (379,626) AA $4€”A A A 8A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30,
2024(Unaudited)A A Accounts ReceivableA A On January 1, 2023, the Company adopted ASC 326,
d€ceFinanciallnstruments - Credit Lossesa€. In accordance with ASC 326, an allowance is maintained for estimated
forward-looking losses resultingfrom the possible inability of customers to make the required payments (current
expected losses). The amount of the allowance is determinedprincipally on the basis of past collection experience and
known financial factors regarding specific customers.A Accounts receivable are stated at estimated net realizablevalue.
Accounts receivable are comprised of balances due from customers net of estimated credit loss allowances for
uncollectible accounts.In determining the collections on the account, historical trends are evaluated, and specific
customer issues are reviewed to arrive atappropriate allowances. The Company reviews its accounts to estimate losses
resulting from the inability of its customers to make therequired payments. Any required allowance is based on specific
analysis of past due accounts and also considers historical trends of write-offs.Past due status is based on how recently
payments have been received from customers.A InventoryA Inventory consists primarily of spare parts and
consumablesand long-lead time components to be used in the production of our technology systems or in connection
with maintenance agreements withcustomers. Any inventory deemed to be obsolete is written off. Inventory is stated at
the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventorycost is primarily determined using the weighted average cost
method.A Intangible AssetA In May 2024, the Company recognized an intangibleasset which represents digital image
data rights received under a license agreement as non-monetary consideration under a five-year customercontract. The
intangible asset will be amortized over the five-year contractual term.A Long-lived assetsA Long-lived assets are
reviewed for impairment wheneverevents or changes in circumstances indicate that the book value of the asset may not
be recoverable. The Company periodically evaluateswhether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate
possible impairment. When impairment indicators exist, the Company estimatesthe future undiscounted net cash flows
of the related asset or asset group over the remaining life of the asset in measuring whether thelong-lived asset should
be written down to fair value. Measurement of the amount of impairment would be based on generally accepted
valuationmethodologies, as deemed appropriate. If the carrying amount is greater than the undiscounted cash flows,
the carrying amount of the assetis reduced to the asseta€™s fair value. An impairment loss is recognized immediately
as an operating expense in the consolidated statementsof operations. Reversal of previously recorded impairment losses
are prohibited.A A A Software Development CostsA Software development costs incurred prior to
establishingtechnological feasibility are charged to operations and included in research and development costs. The
technological feasibility of asoftware product is established when the Company has completed all planning, designing,
coding, and testing activities that are necessaryto establish that the product meets its design specifications, including
functionality, features, and technical performance requirements.Software development costs incurred after establishing
technologicalA feasibility for software sold as a perpetual license, as definedwithin ASC 985-20 (Software 4€“ Costs of
Software to be Sold, Leased, or Marketed), are capitalized and amortized on a product-by-productbasis when the
product is available for general release to customers. Software development costs are evaluated for impairment
annuallyby comparing the net realizable value to the unamortized capitalized costs and writing these costs down to net
realizable value.A Stock-Based CompensationA The Company accounts for employee and non-employeestock-based
compensation in accordance with ASC 718-10, a€eShare-Based Payment,a€ which requires the measurement and
recognitionof compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors including
stock options, restricted stock units,and employee stock purchases based on estimated fair values. The stock-based
compensation carries a graded vesting feature subject tothe condition of time of employment service with awarded
stock-based compensation tranches vesting evenly upon the anniversary date ofthe award.A The Company estimates the
fair value of stock optionsgranted using the Black-Scholes option-pricing formula. In accordance with ASC 718-10-35-8,
the Company elected to recognize the fairvalue of the stock award using the graded vesting method as time of
employment service is the criteria for vesting. The Companya€ ™ sdetermination of fair value using an option-pricing
model is affected by the stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number ofhighly subjective variables.A A 9A
DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A A The Company estimates volatility based upon the
historicalstock price of the Company and estimates the expected term for stock options using the simplified method for
employees and directors andthe contractual term for non-employees. The risk-free rate is determined based upon the
prevailing rate of United States Treasury securitieswith similar maturities.A A Revenue RecognitionA The Company
follows Accounting Standards Codification606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (a€eASC 6064€), that affects
the timing of when certain types of revenues will berecognized. The basic principles in ASC 606 include the following: a
contract with a customer creates distinct contract assets and performanceobligations, satisfaction of a performance
obligation creates revenue, and a performance obligation is satisfied upon transfer of controlto a good or service to a
customer.A Revenue is recognized by evaluating our revenue contractswith customers based on the five-step model
under ASC 606:A A 1. Identify the contract with the customer; A A 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract; A A 3. Determine the transaction price; A A 4. Allocate the transaction price to separate performance
obligations; and A A 5. Recognize revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied. A The Company
generates revenue from four sources:A (1) ‘Technology SystemsA (2) Al TechnologiesA (3) Technical SupportA (4)
Consulting ServicesA Technology SystemsA For revenues related to technology systems, the Companyrecognizes



revenue over time using a cost-based input methodology in which significant judgment is required to estimate costs to
completeprojects. These estimated costs are then used to determine the progress towards contract completion and the
corresponding amount of revenueto recognize.A Accordingly, the Company now bases its revenue recognitionon ASC
606-10-25-27, where control of a good or service transfers over time if the entitya€™s performance does not create an
assetwith an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date including aprofit margin or reasonable return on capital. Control is deemed to pass to the customer
instantaneously as the goods are manufacturedand revenue is recognized accordingly.A In addition, the Company has
adopted ASC 606-10-55-21such that if the cost incurred is not proportionate to the progress in satisfying the
performance obligation, we adjust the input methodto recognize revenue only to the extent of the cost incurred.
Therefore, the Company will recognize revenue at an equal amount to thecost of the goods to satisfy the performance
obligation. To accurately reflect revenue recognition based on the input method, the Companyhas adopted the
implementation guidance as set out in ASC-606-10-55-187 through 192.A Under this method, contract revenues are
recognizedover the performance period of the contract in direct proportion to the costs incurred. Costs include direct
material, direct labor, subcontractlabor and other allocable indirect costs. All un-allocable indirect costs and corporate
general and administrative costs are also chargedto the periods as incurred. Any recognized revenues that have not
been billed to a customer are recorded as an asset in d€cecontractassetsa€. Any billings of customers more than
recognized revenues are recorded as a liability in d€cecontract liabilitiesa€.However, in the event a loss on a contract is
foreseen, the Company will recognize the loss when such loss is determined to be both probableand reasonably
estimable.A A 10A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A A A AI TechnologiesA The Company
has revenue from applications that incorporateartificial intelligence (AI) in the form of predetermined algorithms which
provide important operating information to the users of oursystems. The revenue generated from these applications of
AT consists of a fixed fee related to the design, development, testing and incorporationof new algorithms into the
system, which is recognized as revenue at a point in time upon acceptance, as well as an annual
applicationmaintenance fee, which is recognized as revenue ratably over the contracted maintenance term.A Technical
SupportA Technical support services are provided on both anas-needed and extended-term basis and may include
providing both parts and labor. Maintenance and technical support provided outside ofa maintenance contract are on
an a€ceas-requesteda€ basis, and revenue is recognized over time as the services are provided. Revenuefor
maintenance and technical support provided on an extended-term basis is recognized over time ratably over the term of
the contract.A Consulting Services A The Companya€™s consulting services business generatesrevenues under
contracts with customers from three sources: (1) Professional Services (consulting and auditing); (2) Customer
servicetraining and (3) Maintenance/support.A (1) Revenues for professional services, which areof short-term duration,
are recognized when services are completed;A (2) Training sales are one-time upfront short-termtraining sessions and
are recognized after the service has been performed; andA (3) Maintenance/support is an optional product soldto our
software license customers under one-year or longer contracts. Accordingly, maintenance payments received upfront
are deferredand recognized over the contract term.A Multiple Performance Obligations and Allocationof Transaction
Price A Arrangements with customers may involve multiple performanceobligations including project revenue and
maintenance services in our Technology Systems business. Maintenance will occur after the projectis completed and
may be provided on an extended-term basis or on an as-needed basis. In our consulting services business, multiple
performanceobligations may include any of the above four sources. Training and maintenance on software products
may occur after the software productsale while other services may occur before or after the software product sale and
may not relate to the software product. Revenue recognitionfor a multiple performance obligations arrangement is as
follows:A Each performance obligation is accounted for separatelywhen each has value to the customer on a standalone
basis and there is Company specific objective evidence of the selling price of eachdeliverable. For revenue
arrangements with multiple deliverables, the Company allocates the total customer arrangement to the separateunits of
accounting based on their relative selling prices as determined by the price of the items when sold separately. Once the
sellingprice is allocated, the revenue for each performance obligation is recognized using the applicable criteria under
GAAP as discussed abovefor performance obligations sold in single performance obligation arrangements. A delivered
item or items that do not qualify as a separateunit of accounting within the arrangement are combined with the other
applicable undelivered items within the arrangement. The allocationof arrangement consideration and the recognition
of revenue is then determined for those combined deliverables as a single unit of accounting.The Company sells its
various services and software and hardware products at established prices on a standalone basis which provides
Companyspecific objective evidence of selling price for purposes of performance obligations relative selling price
allocation. The Company onlysells maintenance services or spare parts based on its established rates after it has
completed a system integration project for a customer.The customer is not required to purchase maintenance services.
All elements in multiple performance obligations arrangements with Companycustomers qualify as separate units of
account for revenue recognition purposes. A A 11A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30,
2024(Unaudited)A A A A LeasesA The Company follows ASC 842 &€ceLeasesa€.This guidance requires lessees to
recognize right-of-use (24€0eROUA&£) assets and lease liabilities for most operating leases. Inaddition, this guidance
requires that lessors separate lease and non-lease components in a contract in accordance with the revenue guidancein
ASC 606.A The Company made an accounting policy election tonot recognize short-term leases with terms of twelve
months or less on the balance sheet and instead recognize the lease payments as anexpense when incurred. The
Company has also elected to account for real estate leases that contain both lease and non-lease componentsas a single
lease component.A At the inception of a contract the Company assesseswhether the contract is, or contains, a lease.
The Companya€™s assessment is based on: (1) whether the contract involves the use ofa distinct identified asset, (2)
whether we obtain the right to substantially all the economic benefit from the use of the asset throughoutthe period,
and (3) whether we have the right to direct the use of the asset.A Operating ROU assets represent the right to use
theleased asset for the lease term and operating lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of minimum
lease payments overthe lease term at commencement date. As most leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company
uses an incremental borrowing rate basedon the information available at the lease commencement date to determine
the present value of future payments. The lease term includesall periods covered by renewal and termination options
where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise the renewal options or notto exercise the termination options.
Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is includedin general and
administration expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.A Earnings (Loss) Per ShareA Basic earnings per



share (EPS) are computed by dividingthe net loss applicable to common stock by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted net loss per common shareis computed by dividing the net loss applicable to
common stock by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the periodand, if dilutive, potential
common shares outstanding during the period. Potential common shares consist of the incremental common
sharesissuable upon the exercise or conversion of stock options, stock warrants, convertible debt instruments,
convertible preferred stock orother common stock equivalents. Potentially dilutive securities are excluded from the
computation if their effect is anti-dilutive. A A At September 30, 2024, there were (i) 0 outstanding warrants to
purchase shares of common stock, (ii) employee stock options to purchase an aggregate of 1,259,066 sharesof common
stock, (iii) 466,334 common shares issuable upon conversion of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, and (iv)
5,220,309 commonshares issuable upon conversion of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, all of which were excluded
from the computation of diluted netearnings per share because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.At
September 30, 2023, there were (i) an aggregateof 80,091 outstanding warrants to purchase shares of common stock,
(ii) employee stock options to purchase an aggregate of 1,217,775 sharesof common stock, (iii) 433,000 common shares
issuable upon conversion of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, (iv) 1,333,334 common sharesissuable upon
conversion of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, and (v) 806,452 common shares issuable upon conversion of Series
F ConvertiblePreferred Stock, all of which were excluded from the computation of diluted net earnings per share
because their inclusion would havebeen anti-dilutive.A 12A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30,
2024(Unaudited)A A A A Recent Accounting PronouncementsA From time to time, the FASB or other standards
settingbodies will issue new accounting pronouncements. Updates to the FASB ASC are communicated through
issuance of an Accounting StandardsUpdate (4€eASU&€).A In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07
SegmentReporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. ASU 2023-07 requires companies to
disclose significant segmentexpenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker. ASU 2023-07 is
effective for annual periods beginning on Januaryl, 2024 and interim periods beginning on January 1, 2025. ASU 2023-
07 must be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented inthe financial statements. The Company has evaluated
the disclosure impact of ASU 2023-07; and determined the standard will not have animpact on the Companya€™s
consolidated financial statements.A In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09Income Taxes (Topic 740):
Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. ASU 2023-09 requires companies to disclose, on an annual basis,
specificcategories in the effective tax rate reconciliation and provide additional information for reconciling items that
meet a quantitativethreshold. Further, ASU 2023-09 requires companies to disclose additional information about
income taxes paid. ASU 2023-09 is effectivefor annual periods beginning January 1, 2025 and will be applied on a
prospective basis with the option to apply the standard retrospectively.The Company evaluated the disclosure impact of
ASU 2023-09; and determined the standard will not have an impact on the Companya€ ™ sconsolidated financial
statements.A Management does not believe that any other recently issued, but notyet effective accounting
pronouncements, if adopted, would have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements.A NOTE 2 a€“
LIQUIDITYA Under Accounting Codification ASC 205, Presentationof Financial Statementsa€”Going Concern (Subtopic
205-40) (a€eASC 205-404a€), the Company has the responsibility to evaluatewhether conditions and/or events raise
substantial doubt about its ability to meet its future financial obligations as they become duewithin one year after the
date that the financial statements are issued. As required by ASC 205-40, this evaluation shall initially nottake into
consideration the potential mitigating effects of plans that have not been fully implemented as of the date the financial
statementsare issued. Management has assessed the Companya€™s ability to continue as a going concern in
accordance with the requirement of ASC205-40.A As reflected in the accompanying consolidated financialstatements,
the Company had a net loss of $7,358,143 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. During the same period,
cash used inoperating activities was $6,200,147. The working capital deficit and accumulated deficit as of September
30, 2024, were $1,600,154 and$70,961,695, respectively. In previous financial reports, the Company had raised
substantial doubt about continuing as a going concern.This was principally due to a lack of working capital prior to
underwritten offerings and private placements which were completed during2022, 2023, and now the first, second and
third quarters of 2024 as well.A A 13A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A A As previously
noted, the Company was successfulduring 2023 in raising gross proceeds of over $11,500,000 from the sale of Series E
and F Preferred Stock. Additionally, in the firstand second quarters of 2024, the Company raised gross proceeds of
$2,995,000 from the issuance of a combination of Series D and E PreferredStock (See Note 6). Additionally, during the
second quarter of 2024 the Company entered into an ATM Sales Agreement (the a€oeSalesAgreementa€) with
Ascendiant Capital Markets, LLC (the a€ceSales Agenta€ or a€oeACMa€) relating to the sale of ourcommon stock, par
value $0.001 per share, pursuant to the prospectus dated May 17, 2024. In accordance with the terms of the Sales
Agreement,we may offer and sell shares of our common stock bearing an aggregate offering price of up to $7,500,000
from time to time through orto ACM, acting as an agent or principal. On July 22, 2024, the Company, through its wholly
owned subsidiary Duos Edge Al, Inc., enteredinto secured promissory notes totaling $2.2 million in funding with two
institutional investors. These notes mature on December 31, 2025,and bear an interest rate of 10% per annum, with all
principal and accrued interest due at maturity. The proceeds are designated exclusivelyfor the equipment and services
required for the installation of the Company's previously announced edge data centers. In the long run,the continuation
of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the ability of the Company to continue executing its business
plan,generate enough revenue, and attain consistently profitable operations. A In the long run, the continuation of the
Company asa going concern is dependent upon the ability of the Company to continue executing its business plan and
growing the Company sufficientlyto generate enough revenue to attain consistently profitable operations. The Company
cannot currently quantify the uncertainty relatedto previous supply chain delays or the persistence of inflation and their
effects on our customers in the coming quarters. We have analyzedour cash flow under a€ocestress testa€ conditions and
have determined that we have sufficient liquid assets on hand, forthcomingwith ongoing business or available via the
capital markets to maintain operations for at least twelve months from the date of this report.A In addition,
management has been taking and continuesto take actions including, but not limited to, elimination of certain costs that
do not contribute to short term revenue, and re-aligningboth management and staffing with a focus on improving
certain skill sets necessary to build growth and profitability and focusing productstrategy on opportunities that are
likely to bear results in the relatively short term. The Company believes that, as described above,it will have sufficient
sources of working capital to meet its obligations over the following twelve months. In the last twelve monthsthe
Company has experienced relatively steady contracted backlog as well as seen positive signs from new commercial



engagements that indicateimprovements in future commercial opportunities for both one-time capital and recurring
services revenues.A Management believes that, at this time, theconditions in our market space with ongoing contract
delays, the consequent need to procure certain materials in advance of abinding contract and the additional time
needed to execute on new contracts previously reported have put a strain on our cashreserves. However, proactive
management of our existing contracts and operating costs, recent stock offerings and private placementsas well as the
availability to raise capital via the Sales Agreement indicate there is no substantial doubt that the Company cancontinue
as a going concern for a period of twelve months from the issuance date of this report. We continue executing the plan
togrow our business and achieve profitability. The Company may selectively look at opportunities for fund raising in the
future.Management has extensively evaluated our requirements for the next twelve months and has determined that
the Company currently hassufficient cash and access to capital to operate for at least that period.A While no assurance
can be provided, management believesthat these actions provide the opportunity for the Company to continue as a
going concern and to grow its business and achieve profitabilitywith access to additional capital funding. Ultimately the
continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the abilityof the Company to continue executing the
plan described above which was put in place in late 2022, continued in 2023, and will continuein 2024 and beyond.
These consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability and classificationof
recorded asset amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to
continue as a goingconcern.A A 14A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES
TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A A NOTE 3 a€“
INTANGIBLE ASSETA In May 2024, the Company recorded an intangibleasset with a fair value of $11,161,428. This
asset represents non-monetary consideration received under a 5-year customer contract, inwhich the Company will
provide maintenance services to the customer. The intangible asset represents Digital Image data rights in theform of a
license agreement received by the Company from the customer.The fair value of the asset was determined onthe
contract inception date based on the standalone selling price of the service and goods to be provided to the customer
under the 5-yearcontract since the Company could not reasonably estimate the fair value of the data rights received.
The non-monetary transaction wasaccounted for in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 606-10-
32-21 through ASC 606-10-32-24.0n the contract inception date, the Companyalso recorded an immediate amortization
of the intangible asset of $199,008 related to the pre-contract costs incurred relating to a pilotprogram for this contract
and recorded deferred revenue of $11,161,428 as contract liabilities with a current and non-current component,and
then immediately recognized $199,008 of this deferred revenue relating to the completed pilot program. The remaining
deferred revenuewill be recognized over the 5-year term.In accordance with ASC 350-30-35-1, the amortizationfor the
intangible asset is based on its useful life and the useful life of an intangible asset is the period over which it is
expectedto contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows of that entity. Accordingly, amortization of the
intangible asset is recognizedover the life of the contract of five years.In accordance with ASC 350-30-35-14, an
intangibleasset that is subject to amortization shall be reviewed for impairment if the carrying amount of the asset is
not recoverable and exceedsits fair value. There is no indication of impairment at September 30, 2024.Intangible asset
at September 30, 2024 and December31, 2023 consists of: Schedule of intangible assetA AAAA AAA AA AAA

A A AA September 30,A A December 31,A AA 2024A A 2023A Intangible Asset, grossA $11,161,428A A $a€”A
Accumulated AmortizationA A (1,021,190)A A 4€”A Intangible Asset, netA $10,140,238A A $4€”A Amortization of
the intangible assetduring the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and September 30 2023, was $1,021,190and
zero 0 respectively.The future amortization of the intangible asset isas follows: Schedule of future amortization of
intangible assets A A A A Calendar Year A A A Amount A A 2024 A A $ 548,120 A A 2025A A A 2,192,484 A A
2026 A A A 2,192,484 A A 2027 A A A 2,192,484 A A 2028 A A A 2,192,484 A A 2029A A A 822,182A A
Total Intangible Asset Amortization A A $ 10,140,238 A AA 15A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30,
2024(Unaudited)A A NOTE 4 4€“ DEBTA Notes Payable - Financing AgreementsA A The Companya€™s notes payable
relating to financingagreements classified as current liabilities consist of the following as of September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023: Schedule of notes payable related to financing agreementsA AAA AAA AAA AA AA
September 30, 2024A A December 31, 2023A Notes PayableA PrincipalA A InterestA A PrincipalA A InterestA A A
AAA AAA AAA AA Third Party - Insurance Note 1A $77,095A A A 8.25%A $39,968A A A 8.00% Third Party -
Insurance Note 2A A 10,194A A A 4€”A A A 2,008A A A 4€”A Third Party - Insurance Note 3A A 41,115A A

Aae”AA Aa€”AA Aa€”A TotalA $128,404A A A a€”A A $41,976A A A 4€”A A A The Company entered into an
agreement on April 15,2023 with its insurance provider by issuing a note payable (Insurance Note 1) for the purchase
of an insurance policy in the amount 0f$142,734, secured by that policy with an annual interest rate of 8.00% and
payable in 11 monthly installments of principal and interesttotaling $13,501. The Company renewed its agreement on
April 15, 2024 with its insurance provider by issuing a note payable (InsuranceNote 1) for the purchase of an insurance
policy in the amount of $154,338, secured by that policy with an annual interest rate of 8.25%and payable in 10
monthly installments of principal and interest totaling $16,023. At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the
balanceof Insurance Note 1 was $77,095 and $39,968, respectively.A The Company renewed its agreement on February
3, 2023with its insurance provider by issuing a note payable (Insurance Note 2) for the purchase of an insurance policy
in the amount of $24,140,and payable in 12 monthly installments of $2,012. The Company renewed its agreement on
February 3, 2024 with its insurance provider byissuing a note payable (Insurance Note 2) for the purchase of an
insurance policy in the amount of $24,480, and payable in 12 monthlyinstallments of $2,040. At September 30, 2024
and December 31, 2023, the balance of Insurance Note 2 was $10,194 and $2,008, respectively.A The Company entered
into an agreement on February3, 2024 with its insurance provider by issuing a note payable (Insurance Note 3) for the
purchase of an insurance policy in the amountof $245,798 with a down payment paid in the amount of $84,473 in the
first quarter of 2024 and ten monthly installments of $20,166. AtSeptember 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the
balance of Insurance Note 3 was $41,115 and $0, respectively.A A 16A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30,
2024(Unaudited)A A A Promissory NotesA On July 22, 2024, the Company and Duos Edge Al enteredinto secured
promissory notes (the "Notes") with two institutional investors in the Company, 21 April Fund LP and 21 April FundLtd.
The principal amounts of the Notes are $1,520,000 for the Note issued to 21 April Fund Ltd. and $680,000 for the Note
issued to 21April Fund LP. The Notes bear interest at an annual rate of 10% and the principal and any accrued interest
on the Notes are due on December30, 2025. The Company has guaranteed all of Duos Edge AI&€™ s obligations
pursuant to the Notes.A As security for the Notes, Duos Edge Al granteda first priority security interest in the
equipment installed, as well as all revenues from such equipment and the Company pledgedall proceeds from the sale



of shares of Common Stock under its ATM facility. All of the pledged revenues from the equipment and theATM facility
are deposited in a blocked account and used solely to repay the Notes until they are repaid in full. In November
2024,the Company obtained the lendersa€™ consent waiving the requirement to deposit ATM proceeds in a separate
account and to utilizethe ATM proceeds for general corporate purposes, provided that any such amounts must be
deposited in the blocked account on or priorto December 1, 2025. The Notes may be prepaid without any prepayment
penalties, provided that any prepayments shall be madeproportionately to each Note.A This transaction is accounted for
in accordance withASC 470, which provides guidance on the accounting for debt and debt modifications. The Company
is in compliance with all covenants andconditions associated with the Notes as of September 30, 2024.A As of
September 30, 2024, the carrying amount of theNotes is classified as a non-current liability on the Companya€™s
consolidated balance sheet. The Company accrued interest of $42,794for the three months ended September 30, 2024
with regard to the Notes.A In connection with the Notes, the Company issuedwarrants to purchase 92,727shares of
Common Stock to 21 April Fund LP and 207,273shares of Common Stock to 21 April Fund Ltd. The warrants had an
exercise price of $3.00and were exercisable at any time on or prior to the close of business on the five 5-year
anniversary of the original issuance dateof July 22, 2024. The warrants contained a fundamental transaction provision
whereby the Company might have to make a cash paymentto the warrant holder on a fundamental transaction trigger
date. Accordingly, the warrants met the criteria to be accounted for as aderivative liability instrument.A The above
warrants and the previously held 44,644warrants were exercised by 21 April Fund LP and 21 April Fund Ltd. on
September 19, 2024 and the Company issued an aggregate of 344,644shares of Common Stock. In connection with such
exercise, the parties agreed to reduce the exercise price of the warrants to $2.61 pershare and to remove any
a€oeblockera€ or similar provisions in the warrants.A The warrant liability value was measured using aMonte Carlo
simulation valuation method. The initial warrant liability valuation on the loan date was $625,606which was recorded as
a debt discount and initial warrant liability. The warrant liability on September 19, 2024 was $379,626 witha change in
fair value recorded in other income/expense from the initial recording date through September 30, 2024 of
$245,980.The debt discount is being amortized over the term of the Notes.A On September 19, 2024, the warrant
exercise date,the Company eliminated the warrant liability and recognized a gain on the extinguishment of the warrants
in the amount $379,626.A The promissory Notes Payable at September 30, 2024were as follows: Schedule of
promissory notes payableA A A Notes PayableA $2,200,000A Unamortized DiscountA A (552,005) Notes Payable,
netA $1,647,995A A Amortization of the discount from the Note date ofJuly 22, 2024 through September 30, 2024 was
$73,601 which is included in interest expense. A A 17A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30,
2024(Unaudited)A A The Company used the following assumptions in determining the fair valueof the warrant
liabilities: Schedule of assumptions in determining AAAAAAAAAAAAAA UponGrantA A Upon
Exercise A A A 21 April Fund LP A A 21 April Fund Ltd A A 21 April Fund LP A A 21 April Fund Ltd A Date of
Grant (Exercise) A July 22, 2024 A A July 22, 2024 A A September 19, 2024 A A September 19, 2024 A Note Value
A $a€”A A $a€”A A $a€” A A $a€” A Issue (Exercise) Stock Price A $2.77A A $2.77A A $249A A $2.49
A Strike A $3.00A A $3.00A A $261A A A 2.61 A Share Equivalents A A 92,727 A A A 207,273 A A A
92,727 A A A 207,273 A Strike Price discountA A 0% A A 0% A A 0% A A 0 % Expected Remaining Term
(Years) A A 5.00A A A 500A A A 484A A A 4.84 A Historical Volatility A A 52 % A A 52% A A 58% A A 58
% Expected Volatility A A 100 % A A 100 % A A 58 % A A 58 % Dividend Yield A A 0% A A 0% A A0%A A0
% Annual Rate of Quarterly Dividends A $ 0.000 A A $ 0.000A A $0.000 A A $ 0.000 A Discount Rate - Bond
Equivalent Yield A A 4.170 % A A 4.170 % A A 3.480 % A A 3.480 % A A A ANOTE 5 4€“ COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIESA Operating Lease Obligations A OnJuly 26, 2021, the Company entered a new operating lease
agreement for office and warehouse combination space of 40,000 square feet, withthe lease commencing on November
1, 2021 and ending April 30, 2032. This new space combines the Companya€™s two separate work locationsinto one
facility, which allows for greater collaboration and also accommodates a larger anticipated workforce and
manufacturing facility.On November 24, 2021, the lease was amended to commence on December 1, 2021 and end on
May 31, 2032. The Company recognized a ROU assetand operating lease liability in the amount of $4,980,104

A A atlease commencement. Rent for the first eleven months of the term was calculated based on 30,000 rentable
square feet. The rent is subjectto an annual escalation of 2.5%, beginning November 1, 2023. The Company made a
security deposit payment in the amount of $600,000 onJuly 26, 2021. Per the contract, in the 18th month and every
12th month thereafter, the security deposit is reduced by $50,000. The rightof use asset balance at September 30,
2024, net of accumulated amortization, was $4,117,471.A As of September 30, 2024, the office and warehouselease is
the Companya€™s only lease with a term greater than twelve months. The office and warehouse lease has a remaining
term ofapproximately 7.75 years and includes an option to extend for two renewal terms of five years each. The renewal
options are not reasonablycertain to be exercised, and therefore, they are not included when determining the lease
term used to establish the right-of use assetand lease liability. The Company also has several short-term leases,
primarily related to equipment. The Company made an accounting policyelection to not recognize short-term leases
with terms of twelve months or less on the consolidated balance sheet and instead recognizethe lease payments in
expense as incurred. The Company has also elected to account for real estate leases that contain both lease andnon-
lease components (such as common area maintenance) as a single lease component. A The followmg tqble Ashows
supplemental informationrelated to leases: Schedule of supplemental information related to leasesA AAA AA AA
Nine Months Ended September 30, A AA 2024A A 2023A Leasecost:A AAAA AAA Operating lease costA

$586 228A A $586,228A Short-term lease costA $16,477A A $56 052A AA AAAA AAA Other information:A
AAAA AAA Operating cash outflow used for operating leasesA $583,101A A $505,664A Weighted average
discount rateA A 9.0%A A 9.0% Weighted average remaining lease termA A 7.75 yearsA A A 8.6 yearsA AAA 18A
DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A A A As of September 30, 2024, future minimum lease
paymentsdue under our operating leases are as follows: Schedule of future minimum lease payments due under the _
operating lease A A A A A Amount A Calendaryear: A A A A 2024 A $ 195,986 A 2025 A A 798,556 A 2026 A
A 818,518 A 2027 A A 838,984 A 2028 A A 859,856 A Thereafter A A 3,183,571 A Total undiscounted future
minimum lease payments A A 6,695,471 A Less: Impact of discounting A A (1,940,223 ) Total present value of
operating lease obligations A A 4,755,248 A Current portion, operating lease obligation A A (793,658 ) Operating
lease obligations, less current portion A $ 3,961,590 A A A NOTE 6 4€“ STOCKHOLDERSA€™ EQUITYA A Series B
Convertible Preferred StockA The following summary of certain terms and provisionsof our Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock (the a€meSeries B Convertible Preferred Stocka€) is subject to, and qualified in itsentirety by reference



to, the terms and provisions set forth in our certificate of designation of preferences, rights and limitationsof Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock (the &€ceSeries B Convertible Preferred Certificate of Designationa€) as previously
filed.Subject to the limitations prescribed by our articles of incorporation, our board of directors is authorized to
establish the number ofshares constituting each series of preferred stock and to fix the designations, powers,
preferences, and rights of the shares of eachof those series and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions of each of
those series, all without any further vote or action byour stockholders. Our board of directors designated 15,000 of the
10,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock as Series B ConvertiblePreferred Stock with a stated value of $1,000
per share. The shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock were validly issued, fullypaid and non-assessable.A Each
share of Series B Convertible PreferredStock was convertible at any time at the holdera€™s option into a number of
shares of common stock equal to $1,000divided by the conversion price of $7.00per share. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, we could not effect any conversion of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, with certainexceptions, to the
extent that, after giving effect to an attempted conversion, the holder of shares of Series B ConvertiblePreferred Stock
(together with such holdera€™s affiliates, and any persons acting as a group together with such holder or any ofsuch
holdera€™ s affiliates) would beneficially own a number of shares of our common stock in excess of 4.99% (or, at
theelection of the purchaser, 9.99%) of the shares of our common stock then outstanding after giving effect to such
conversion. TheSeries B Convertible Preferred Certificate of Designation does not prohibit the Company from waiving
this limitation. Upon anyliquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, the
holders would be entitled to participate onan as-converted-to-common stock basis (without giving effect to the
Beneficial Ownership Limitation) with holders of the commonstock in any distribution of assets of the Company to the
holders of the common stock. As of September 30, 2024 and DecemberAS 1,2023, respectively, there are zero 0 aI}d Zero
shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.A A Series C Convertible Preferred StockA The
Companya€™s Board of Directors designated5,000 shares as the Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (the d€ceSeries
C Convertible Preferred Stocka€). Each share of the SeriesC Convertible Preferred Stock had a stated value of $1,000.
The holders of the Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, the holders of thecommon stock and the holders of any other
class or series of shares entitled to vote with the common stock shall vote together as oneclass on all matters submitted
to a vote of shareholders of the Company. Each share of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock had 172 votes(subject to
adjustment); provided that in no event may a holder of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock be entitled to vote a
number ofshares in excess of such holdera€™s Beneficial Ownership Limitation (as defined in the Certificate of
Designation and as describedbelow). Each share of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock was convertible, at any time
and from time to time, at the option of the holder,into that number of shares of common stock (subject to the Beneficial
Ownership Limitation) determined by dividing the stated value ofsuch share ($1,000) by the conversion price, which is
$5.50 (subject to adjustment). The Company shall not effect any conversion of theSeries C Convertible Preferred Stock,
and a holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series C Convertible PreferredStock, to the extent
that after giving effect to the conversion sought by the holder such holder (together with such holdera€™s
AttributionParties (as defined in the Certificate of Designation)) would beneficially own more than 4.99% (or upon
election by a holder, 19.99%)of the number of shares of common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to
the issuance of shares of common stock issuableupon such conversion (the a€oeBeneficial Ownership Limitationa€). All
holders of the Series C Preferred Stock elected the 19.99%Beneficial Ownership Limitation.A A 19A DUOS
TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A On February 26, 2021, the Company entered into a
SecuritiesPurchase Agreement (the a€ePurchase Agreementa€) with certain existing investors in the Company (the
d€mePurchasersa€).Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Purchasers purchased 4,500 shares of a newly authorized
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock,and the Company received proceeds of $4,500,000. The Purchase Agreement
contains customary representations, warranties, agreements andindemnification rights and obligations of the parties. In
January 2022, the 2,500 outstanding shares of Series C Convertible PreferredStock were converted into 454,546 shares
of common stock. As of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, there were zero0O and zero shares of
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.A In connection with the Purchase Agreement, the
Companyalso entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with the Purchasers. Pursuant to the Registration Rights
Agreement, the Company filedwith the SEC a registration statement covering the resale by the Purchasers of the shares
of common stock into which the shares of SeriesC Convertible Preferred Stock were convertible. The Registration
Rights Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, agreementsand indemnification rights and
obligations of the parties.A Series D ConvertiblePreferred StockA A On September 28, 2022, the Company amended its
articlesof incorporation to designate 4,000 shares as the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (the a€ceSeries D
Convertible Preferred Stocka€).Each share of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock has a stated value of $1,000.
The holders of the Series D Convertible PreferredStock, the holders of the common stock and the holders of any other
class or series of shares entitled to vote with the common stock shallvote together as one class on all matters submitted
to a vote of shareholders of the Company. Each share of Series D Convertible PreferredStock has 333 votes (subject to
standard anti-dilution adjustment); provided that in no event may a holder of Series D Convertible PreferredStock be
entitled to vote a number of shares in excess of such holdera€™s Beneficial Ownership Limitation (as defined in the
Certificateof Designation and as described below). Each share of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible, at
any time and from time totime, at the option of the holder, into that number of shares of common stock (subject to the
Beneficial Ownership Limitation) determinedby dividing the stated value of such share ($1,000) by the conversion price,
which is $3.00 (subject to adjustment). The Company shallnot effect any conversion of the Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock, and a holder shall not have the right to convert any portion ofthe Series D Convertible Preferred Stock,
to the extent that after giving effect to the conversion sought by the holder such holder (togetherwith such holdera€™s
Attribution Parties (as defined in the Certificate of Designation)) would beneficially own more than 4.99% (orupon
election by a holder, 19.99%) of the number of shares of common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to
the issuanceof shares of common stock issuable upon such conversion (the &€ceBeneficial Ownership Limitationa€). All
but one of the holdersof the Series D Preferred Stock elected the 19.99% Beneficial Ownership Limitation. The
Company shall reserve and keep available out ofits authorized and unissued Common Stock, solely for the issuance
upon the conversion of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, sucha number of shares of Common Stock as shall
from time to time be issuable upon the conversion of all of the shares of the Series D ConvertiblePreferred Stock then
outstanding. Additionally, the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock does not have the right to dividends and in theevent
of an involuntary liquidation, the Series D shares shall be treated as a pro rata equivalent of common stock outstanding
at thedate of the liquidation event and have no liquidation preference.A On September 30, 2022, the Company entered



into aSecurities Purchase Agreement (the d€cePurchase Agreementa€) with certain existing investors in the Company
(the a€ePurchasersa€).Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Purchasers purchased 999 shares of the newly
authorized Series D Convertible Preferred Stock,and the Company received proceeds of $999,000. The Purchase
Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, agreements and indemnificationrights and obligations of
the parties. On October 29, 2022, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the
d€ePurchaseAgreementa€) with a certain existing investor in the Company (the a€oePurchasera€). Pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement, thePurchaser purchased 300 shares of the newly authorized Series D Convertible Preferred
Stock, and the Company received proceeds of $300,000.The Purchase Agreement contains customary representations,
warranties, agreements and indemnification rights and obligations of the parties.A 20A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES
GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A On May 16, 2023, the Series D Convertible PreferredStock was
approved for conversion to common shares during the Companya€™ s annual shareholder meeting.A A On March 22,
2024, March 28, 2024, and April 3, 2024, the Companyentered into Securities Purchase Agreements (the &€oePurchase
Agreementsa€) with certain existing and other accredited investors(the 4€0e2024 Purchasersa€). Pursuant to the
Purchase Agreements, the 2024 Purchasers purchased an aggregate of 870 shares ofSeries D Preferred Stock, at a
price of $1,000 per share, and the Company received proceeds of $870,000.A In April and May of 2024, 650 outstanding
shares ofSeries D Convertible Preferred Stock were converted into 216,668 shares of common stock. As of September
30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, there were 1,399 and 1,299 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred
Stock issued and outstanding.A In connection with such Purchase Agreements, the Companyentered into Registration
Rights Agreements and filed registration statements with the SEC covering the resale by the Purchasers of theshares of
common stock into which the shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible. The Registration Rights
Agreementscontain customary representations, warranties, agreements and indemnification rights and obligations of
the parties.A The Registration Rights Agreements contain provisionsfor liquidated damages equal to 1% multiplied by
the aggregate subscription amount paid, paid each month, in the event certain deadlinesare missed.A Series E
Convertible Preferred StockA The Companya€™s Board of Directors hasdesignated 30,000shares as the Series E
Convertible Preferred Stock (the &€ceSeries E Convertible Preferred Stock&€). Each share of theSeries E Convertible
Preferred Stock has a stated value of $1,000.The holders of the Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, the holders of the
common stock and the holders of any other class orseries of shares entitled to vote with the common stock shall vote as
one class on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholdersof the Company. Eachshare of Series E Convertible
Preferred Stock has 333 votes (subject to adjustment); provided that in no event may a holderof Series E Convertible
Preferred Stock be entitled to vote a number of shares in excess of such holdera€™s Beneficial OwnershipLimitation.
Each share of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible at any time and from time to time, at the option ofthe
holder, into that number of shares of common stock (subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation) determined by
dividing thestated value of such share ($1,000) by the conversion price, which is $3.00(subject to adjustment) see
adjustment below. The Company shall not effect any conversion of the Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, and the
holdershall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, to the extent that after
giving effectto the conversion sought by the holder such holder (together with such holdera€™s Attribution Parties (as
defined in theCertificate of Designation)) would beneficially own more than 4.99% (or upon election by a holder,
19.99%) of the number of sharesof common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares
of common stock issuable upon such conversion(the a&€ceBeneficial Ownership Limitationa€). All but one of the holders
of the Series E Preferred Stock elected the 19.99%Beneficial Ownership Limitation.A 21A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES
GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A The Company on March 27, 2023 entered into aSecurities Purchase
Agreement (the &€cePurchase Agreementa€) with an existing investor in the Company (the &€cePurchasera€).Pursuant
to the Purchase Agreement, the Purchaser purchased 4,000 shares of a newly authorized Series E Convertible
Preferred Stock ata price of $1,000 per share, and the Company received proceeds of $4,000,000. The Purchase
Agreement contains customary representations,warranties, agreements and indemnification rights and obligations of
the parties.A The existing investora€™s Purchase Agreementalso provided that the Company would not, with certain
exceptions, sell or issue common stock or Common Stock Equivalents (as definedin the Purchase Agreement) on or
prior to December 31, 2023 that entitled any person to acquire shares of common stock at aneffective price per share
less than the then conversion price of the Series E Convertible Preferred Stock without the consent of

thePurchaser.A On November 9, 2023, the Company entered into aSecurities Purchase Agreement (the &4€ceNovember
Purchase Agreementa€) with an existing investor in the Company (thea€cePurchasera€). Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, the Purchaser purchased 2,500shares of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, at a price of $1,000 per
share, and the Company received proceeds of $2,500,000. A The November Purchase Agreement also providedthat the
Company would not, with certain exceptions, sell or issue common stock or Common Stock Equivalents (as defined in
the NovemberPurchase Agreement) on or prior to June 30, 2024 that entitled any person to acquire shares of common
stock at an effective priceper share less than the then conversion price of the Series E Convertible Preferred Stock
without the consent of the Purchasers. Theconversion price of the Series E Convertible Preferred Stock as of June 30,
2024 was $3.00per share (subject to adjustment). If the Company sold shares less than the then conversion price,
withthe consent of purchasers, then the Series E conversion price would be amended to that lower share price. This
provision was not triggeredas of June 30, 2024.A The Purchasers under the November Purchase Agreementalso were
the holders of the Companya€™s Series F Convertible Preferred Stock issued on August 1, 2023. The purchase
agreement relatingto the shares of Series F Convertible Preferred Stock required the consent of the holders in the
event the Company were to issue commonstock or rights to acquire common stock prior to December 31, 2023 at an
effective price per share less than the then conversion priceof the Series F Convertible Preferred Stock, which was
$6.20 per share. As a result, on November 10, 2023 the Company and the holdersof the Series F Convertible Preferred
Stock entered into Exchange Agreements pursuant to which the holders of Series F Convertible PreferredStock
exchanged their 5,000 shares of Series F Convertible Preferred Stock for an equal number of shares of Series E
Convertible PreferredStock. As a result of the November Purchase Agreement and the Exchange Agreements, the
Company issued a total of 7,500 shares of SeriesE Convertible Preferred Stock and the 5,000 shares of Series F
Convertible Preferred Stock were cancelled.A A On March 22, 2024 and March 28, 2024, theCompany entered into
Securities Purchase Agreements (the a€cePurchase Agreementsa€) with certain existing and otheraccredited investors
(the 4€©2024 Purchasersa€). Pursuant to the Purchase Agreements, the 2024 Purchasers purchased anaggregate of
2,125shares of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, at a price in each case of $1,000per share, and the Company



received proceeds of $2,125,002. Those purchase agreements had similar price protections as the November Purchase
Agreement but extended the priceprotection date to December 31, 2024, for all Series E holders. On September 19,
2024, the conversion rate was lowered to $2.61 from $3.00per share based on the warrants induced exercise price of
$2.61 per share.A As of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023,respectively, there were 13,625 and 11,500 shares
of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.A A In connection with such Purchase Agreements, the
Companyalso entered into Registration Rights Agreements with the Purchasers. Pursuant to the Registration Rights
Agreements, the Company filedwith the SEC registration statements covering the resale by the Purchasers of the
shares of common stock into which the shares of SeriesE Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible. The Registration
Rights Agreements contain customary representations, warranties, agreementsand indemnification rights and
obligations of the parties.A The Registration Rights Agreements contain provisionsfor liquidated damages equal to 1%
multiplied by the aggregate subscription amount paid, paid each month, in the event certain deadlinesare missed. AA
22A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A Series F Convertible Preferred StockA On August 2,
2023, the Company entered into a SecuritiesPurchase Agreement (the &€cePurchase Agreementa€) with an existing,
accredited investor in the Company (the a€cePurchasera€).Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Purchaser
purchased 5,000 shares of a newly authorized Series F Convertible Preferred Stock (thed€ceSeries F Convertible
Preferred Stocka€), and the Company received proceeds of $5,000,000. The Purchase Agreement containscustomary
representations, warranties, agreements and indemnification rights and obligations of the parties.A The Company's
Board of Directors designated 5,000shares as the Series F Preferred Stock. Each share of Series F Preferred Stock was
convertible, at any time and from time to time, at theoption of the holder, into that number of shares of common stock
(subject to the beneficial ownership limitation described below) determinedby dividing the stated value of such share
($1,000) by the conversion price, which is $6.20 (subject to adjustment) which equates to 161common shares for each
converted Series F preferred share. The Company, however, shall not effect any conversion of the Series F
PreferredStock, and the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series F Preferred Stock, to the
extent that after givingeffect to the conversion sought by the holder such holder (together with such holdera€™s
Attribution Parties (as defined in the Certificateof Designation)) would beneficially own more than 4.99% (or upon
election by a holder, 19.99%) of the number of shares of common stockoutstanding immediately after giving effect to
the issuance of shares of common stock issuable upon such conversion. The purchasers ofthe Series F Preferred Stock
elected that their ownership limitation would be 19.99%.A The holders of the Series F Preferred Stock, the holdersof
the common stock and the holders of any other class or series of shares entitled to vote with the common stock shall
vote togetheras one class on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders of the Company. Each share of Series F
Preferred Stock had 161 votes (subjectto adjustment); provided that in no event may a holder of Series F Preferred
Stock be entitled to vote a number of shares in excess ofsuch holderd€™ s ownership limitation.A The Company also
agreed that it would not, with certainexceptions, sell or issue common stock or Common Stock Equivalents (as defined
in the Purchase Agreement relating to the Series F PreferredStock) on or prior to December 31, 2023 that entitled any
person to acquire shares of common stock at an effective price per share lessthan the then conversion price of the
Series F Preferred Stock without the consent of the holders. As a result of that agreement, uponthe issuance of 2,500
shares of Series E Preferred Stock (which had a conversion price of $3.00 per share) on November 10, 2023, the
holdersexchanged their 5,000 shares of Series F Preferred Stock for 5,000 shares of Series E Preferred Stock. All of the
shares of Series F PreferredStock thereupon were cancelled with 0 shares now outstanding.A As of September 30, 2024
and December 31, 2023, respectively,there were zero 0 and zero shares of Series F Convertible Preferred Stock issued
and outstanding.A A Common stock issuedA Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024A During the three months ended
March 31, 2024,the Company issued 8,655shares of common stock for payment of board fees to four directors in the
amount of $37,500for services to the board which was expensed during the three months ended March 31, 2024. The
volume-weighted average price (VWAP)per share used to value the services is $4.33.A A On April 23, 2024, two
shareholders converted 147and 78 for a total of 225 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock collectively with a
stated value of $225,000 with a conversionprice of $3.00 per common share resulting in the issuance of 49,000 and
26,000 shares of the Companya€™s common stock.A On April 30, 2024, two shareholders converted 100and 250 for a
total of 350 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock collectively with a stated value of $350,000 with aconversion
price of $3.00 per common share resulting in the issuance of 33,334 and 83,334 shares of the Companya€™s common
stock.A 23A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A On May 7, 2024, a shareholder
converted 75 sharesof Series D Convertible Preferred Stock with a stated value of $75,000 with a conversion price of
$3.00 per common share resulting inthe issuance of 25,000 shares of the Companya€™s common stock.A On May 17,
2024, the Company entered into an At-the-MarketIssuance Sales Agreement (the a€oeSales Agreementa€) with
Ascendiant Capital Markets, LLC, as sales agent (the a€aeAgenta€)providing for the sale by the Company of shares of
our common stock, having an aggregate offering price of up to $7,500,000from time to time through the Agent in
connection with an d€ceat-the-marketa€ equity offering program (the 4€eATMOfferinga€) as defined in Rule 415 under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the 4€ceSecurities Acta€). On May 17, 2024,the Company filed a prospectus
supplement with the Securities and Exphange Commission (&€0eSECa€) relating to the offer and saleof up to $7,500,000
of common stock in the ATM Offering.A On June 12, 2024, the Company issued 11,239 sharesof common stock at a
price of $3.05 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of
approximately$33,261.A On June 13, 2024, the Company issued 9,747 sharesof common stock at a price of $3.15 per
share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$29,626.A On
June 17, 2024, the Company issued 400 shares ofcommon stock at a price of $3.02 per share through its At-The-Market
(ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$1,165.A On June 18, 2024, the Company
issued 1,534 sharesof common stock at a price of $3.03 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program,
generating total net proceeds of approximately$4,507.A On June 25, 2024, the Company issued 15,610 sharesof
common stock at a price of $3.15 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net
proceeds of approximately$47,004.A In summary during the three months ended June30, 2024, the Company issued an
aggregate of 38,530 shares of common stock through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generatingtotal net
proceeds of approximately $115,563.A During the three months ended June 30, 2024, the Companyissued 15,041 shares
of common stock for payment of board fees to four directors in the amount of $42,500 for services to the board
whichwas expensed during the three months ended June 30, 2024. The volume-weighted average price (VWAP) per
share used to value the servicesis $2.83.A A On June 30, 2024, the Company issued 38,041 sharesof common stock to



employees participating in the Companya€™s Employee Stock Purchase Plan at the end of a six-month offering
period.The employee contributions totaled $87,348 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 which represented a
purchase price of approximately$2.30 per share. The purchase price for one share of Common Stock under the ESPP is
equal to 85% of the fair market value of one shareof Common Stock on the first trading day of the offering period or the
purchase date, whichever is lower (see below).A On July 1, 2024, the Company issued 700 shares ofcommon stock at a
price of $3.01 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of
approximately$2,036.A On July 5, 2024, a shareholder converted 120 sharesof Series D Convertible Preferred Stock
with a stated value of $120,000 with a conversion price of $3.00 per common share resulting inthe issuance of 40,000
shares of the Companya€™s common stock.A On July 11, 2024, the Company issued 300 shares ofcommon stock at a
price of $3.01 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of
approximately$868.A On July 12, 2024, the Company issued 400 shares ofcommon stock at a price of $3.00 per share
through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$1,157.A On July 15,
2024, the Company issued 4,400 sharesof common stock at a price of $3.00 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM)
offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$12,807.A A A 24A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP,
INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30,
2024(Unaudited)A A On July 16, 2024, the Company issued 1,800 sharesof common stock at a price of $3.00 per share
through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$5,231.A On July 17,
2024, the Company issued 6,677 sharesof common stock at a price of $3.08 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM)
offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$19,910.A On July 18, 2024, the Company issued 2,001
sharesof common stock at a price of $3.04 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating
total net proceeds of approximately$5,896.A On July 22, 2024, the Company issued 400 shares ofcommon stock at a
price of $3.00 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of
approximately$1,157.A On July 24, 2024, the Company issued 200 shares ofcommon stock at a price of $3.01 per share
through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$577.A On July 25,
2024, the Company issued 300 shares ofcommon stock at a price of $3.00 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM)
offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$866.A On July 26, 2024, the Company issued 5,000
sharesof common stock at a price of $3.03 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating
total net proceeds of approximately$14,670.A On July 29, 2024, the Company issued 3,250 sharesof common stock at a
price of $3.07 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of
approximately$9,682.A On July 30, 2024, the Company issued 2,267 sharesof common stock at a price of $3.02 per
share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of approximately$6,638.A On
September 19, 2024, the Company issued an aggregateof 344,644shares of common stock, upon the exercise by 21
April Fund LP and 21 April Fund Ltd. (collectively, the a€ce21 April Entitiesa€)of warrants to purchase 104,647and
239,997shares of Common Stock, respectively. In connection with such exercise, the Company and the 21 April Entities
agreed to reducethe exercise price of the warrants to $2.61per share, and to remove any a€ceeblockera€ or similar
provisions in the warrants. The Company received $899,521upon the exercise.A On September 30, 2024, the Company
issued 819 sharesof common stock at a price of $3.01 per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program,
generating total net proceeds of approximately$2,385.A In summary during the three months ended September30,
2024, the Company issued an aggregate of 28,514 shares of common stock through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering
program, generatingtotal net proceeds of approximately $81,448.A During the three months ended September 30,
2024,the Company issued 14,433 shares of common stock for payment of board fees to four directors in the amount of
$42,500 for services tothe board which was expensed during the three months ended September 30, 2024. The volume-
weighted average price (VWAP) per share usedto value the services is $2.95.A A Nine Months Ended September 30,
2023A During the three months ended March 31, 2023, theCompany issued 12,463 shares of common stock for
payment of board fees to three directors in the amount of $32,500 for services to theboard which was expensed during
the three months ended March 31, 2023. The volume-weighted average price (VWAP) per share used to valuethe
services is $2.61.A A During the three months ended June 30, 2023, the Companyissued 5,645 shares of common stock
for payment of board fees to three directors in the amount of $32,500 for services to the board whichwas expensed
during the three months ended June 30, 2023. The volume-weighted average price (VWAP) per share used to value the
servicesis $5.76.A On June 30, 2023, the Company issued 65,561 sharesof common stock to employees participating in
the Companya€™s Employee Stock Purchase Plan at the end of a six-month offering period.The employee contributions
totaled $117,048 for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and represented a purchase price of $1.79 per share.The
purchase price for one share of Common Stock under the ESPP is equal to 85% of the fair market value of one share of
Common Stockon the first trading day of the offering period or the purchase date, whichever is lower (see

below).A During the three months ended September 30,2023, the Company issued 7,910shares of common stock for
payment of board fees to four directors in the amount of $40,565for services to the board which was expensed during
the three months ended September 30, 2023. The volume-weighted averageprice (VWAP) per share used to value the
services is $5.13.A A A 25A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A Employee Stock Purchase PlanA In
the fourth quarter of 2022, the board of directorsadopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (&€ceESPPa€) which was
effective as of January 1, 2023 with a term of 10 years. The ESPPallows eligible employees to purchase shares of the
Company's common stock at a discounted price, through payroll deductions from a minimumof 1% and up to 25% of
their eligible compensation up to a maximum of $25,000 or the IRS allowable limit per calendar year. The

Companya€ ™ sChief Financial Officer administers the ESPP in conjunction with approvals from the Companya€™s
Compensation Committee, includingwith respect to the frequency and duration of offering periods, the maximum
number of shares that an eligible employee may purchase duringan offering period, and, subject to certain limitations
set forth in the ESPP, the per-share purchase price. Currently, the maximum numberof shares that can be purchased by
an eligible employee under the ESPP is 10,000 shares per offering period and there are two six-monthoffering periods
that begin in the first and third quarters of each fiscal year. The purchase price for one share of Common Stock
underthe ESPP is currently equal to 85% of the fair market value of one share of Common Stock on the first trading day
of the offering periodor the purchase date, whichever is lower (look-back feature). Although not required by the ESPP,
all payroll deductions received or heldby the Company under the ESPP are segregated until the completion of the
offering period and redemption of the applicable shares and thosewithheld amounts are recorded as liabilities. The
maximum aggregate number of shares of the Common Stock that may be issued under theESPP is 1,000,000

shares.A Under ASC 718-50 a€ceEmployee Share Purchase Plansa€the plan is considered a compensatory plan and the



compensation for each six-month offering period is computed based upon the grant date(that is the first date of each
offering period) fair value of the estimated shares to be purchased based on the estimated payroll
deductionwithholdings. Each grant date fair value is computed as the sum of (a) 15% purchase discount off of the grant
date quoted trading priceof the Companya€™s common stock and (b) the fair value of the look-back feature of the
Companya€™s common stock on the grant datewhich consists of a call option on 85% of a share of common stock and a
put option on 15% of a share of common stock.A The Company computed the fair value of the look-backfeature call and
put options for January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 using a Black Scholes option pricing model using the
followingassumptions: Schedule of black scholes option pricing model using assumptions A A A A A At September 30,
2024 A Grant date share price A $2.70 - $2.96 A Grant date exercise price A $2.30 - $2.52 A Expected term A A
0.25 years - 0.5 years A Expected volatility A A 62.00% - 67.3% Risk-free rate A A 4.38% - 5.26% Expected dividend
rate A A 0% A A A During the offer period, the Company recordsstock-based compensation pro rata as an expense and
a credit to additional paid-in capital. The Company issued 38,041 and 65,561common shares on the option exercise
dates of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, respectively. The following table discloses relevant informationfor the ESPP
for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023, respectively. Schedule of stock-based
compensationA AA A A For the Nine Months ended September 30, 2024A Cash from employee withholdings used to
purchase ESPP sharesA $123,359A Stock based compensation expenseA A 54,833A Total charges related to the
Employee Stock Purchase PlanA $178,192A AAAAA AA AA A A For the Nine Months ended September 30,
2023A Cash from employee withholdings used to purchase ESPP sharesA $117,048A Stock based compensation
expenseA A 98,945A Total charges related to the Employee Stock Purchase PlanA $215,993A A A 26A DUOS
TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A Stock-Based Compensation: Options and WarrantsA Stock-based
compensation expense recognized underASC 718-10 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was
$226,575 and $400,645, respectively, for stock options granted toemployees. This expense is included in general and
administrative expenses in the unaudited consolidated statements of operations. Stock-basedcompensation expense
recognized during the periods is based on the grant-date fair value of the portion of share-based payment awardsthat
are ultimately expected to vest during the period. At September 30, 2024, the total compensation cost for stock options
not yet recognizedwas $186,277. This cost will be recognized over the remaining vesting term of the options ranging
from six months to two and one-halfyears.A On May 12, 2021, the Board adopted the 2021 EquityIncentive Plan (the
d€0e2021 Plana€) providing for the issuance of up to 1,000,000 shares of our common stock. The purpose ofthe 2021
Plan is to assist the Company in attracting and retaining key employees, directors and consultants and to provide
incentivesto such individuals to align their interests with those of our shareholders. During the third quarter of 2021,
the shareholders approvedthe issuance of up to one million shares or share equivalents pursuant to the 2021 Plan. The
Company filed an S-8 registration statementin concert with the 2021 Plan which was deemed effective on August 5,
2021. The plan covers a period of ten years. On August 6, 2024,the Board adopted an amendment to the 2021 Plan
increasing the number of shares or share equivalents issuable pursuant to the 2021 Planto the greater of 2,500,000
shares or a number of shares based on a formula tied to the Companya€™s fully diluted common equivalentshare
capitalization, excluding warrants and options. The amendment was approved by shareholders on September 30,
2024.A As of September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, optionsto purchase a total of 1,259,066 (net of forfeitures)
shares of common stock and 1,387,775 shares of common stock were outstanding, respectively.At September 30, 2024,
850,629 options were exercisable. Of the total options issued, 269,658 and 269,658 options were outstanding underthe
2016 Equity Incentive Plan, 709,408 and 788,117 were outstanding under the 2021 Plan and a further 280,000 and
330,000 non-plan optionsto purchase common stock were outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023, respectively. The non-plan options were grantedto four executives as hiring incentives, including the
Companya€™s CEO in the fourth quarter of 2020. Schedule of non-plan optionsAA AAA AAA AAA AAAAA
A AAAAAAAA A NumberofOptionsA A A A A AA A Weighted Average Exercise Pricce A A A A A A
A Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years) A A A A A A AAA Aggregate Intrinsic Value AAAA
Outstanding at December 31, 2022A A A 926,266A A $5.74A A A3.3A A $a4€”A GrantedA A A 463,117A A $4.22A
A 4.35A A $a€”A ForfeitedA A A (1,608)A $14.00A A A 4€”A A $4€”A Outstanding at December 31, 2023A A

A 1,387,775A A $5.23A A A3.0A A $4€”A Exercisable at December 31, 2023A A A 581,324A A $5.38A A A1.8AA
$a€”A AAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Outstanding at December 31, 2023A A A 1,387,775A A $5.23A A

A 3.0A A $4€”A GrantedA A A 4€”A A $4€”A A A 4€”A A $a€”A Exercised/Forfeited/ExpiredA A A (128,709)A
$4.79A A A 4€”"A A $4€”A Outstanding at September 30, 2024A A A 1,259,066A A $5.27A A A2.2A A $4€"A
Exercisable at September 30, 2024A A A 850,629A A $5.44A A A1.6AA $4€”"A AA 27A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES
GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A Warrants Schedule of warrantsAA AAA AAA AAA AAAAA
AAAAAAAAAA Numberof WarrantsA A A AAAAAAAA Weighted Average Exercise Price AAA
A A A A A A A Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years) A A A A A A A A A A A A Aggregate
Intrinsic Value AA A A A Outstanding at December 31, 2022A A 147,591A A $8.63AA A 0.8A A $a€”A Warrants
expired, forfeited, cancelled or exercisedA A (102,947)A $3€”A A A 4€”A A $3€”A Warrants issuedA A a€”A A
$a€”A A A a€”A A $4€”A Outstanding at December 31, 2023A A 44,644A A $7.70A A A 0.7A A $4€”A Exercisable at
December 31, 2023A A 44,644A A $7.70AA A0.7AA $46”"A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Outstanding at
December 31, 2023A A 44,644A A $7.70A A A 0.7A A $a€”A Warrants issuedA A 300,000A A $3.00A A A5.0AA
$4€”A Warrants expired, forfeited, cancelled or exercisedA A (344,644)A $4€”A A A 4€”A A $a€”A Outstanding at
September 30, 2024A A 4€”A A $a€”A A A 4€”A A $a€”A Exercisable at September 30, 2024A A 4€”A A $a4€”A A

A 4€”A A $a€”A A ANOTE 7 - REVENUE AND CONTRACT ACCOUNTINGA Revenue Recognition and Contract
AccountingA The Company generates revenue from four sources: (1)Technology Systems; (2) Al Technology which is
included in the consolidated statements of operations line-item Technology Systems; (3)Technical Support; and (4)
Consulting Services which is included in the consolidated statements of operations line-item Services and

Consulting.A Contract assets and contract liabilities on uncompletedcontracts for revenues recognized over time are as
follows:A Contract AssetsA Contract assets on uncompleted contracts representcumulative revenues recognized in
excess of billings and/or cash received on uncompleted contracts accounted for under the cost-to-costinput method,
which recognizes revenue based on the ratio of cost incurred to total estimated costs.A A A 28A DUOS
TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, contractassets on

uncompleted contracts consisted of the following: Schedule of contracts assets on uncompleted contractsA AAA A A
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A A September 30, 2024A A December 31, 2023A Cumulative revenues recognizedA $9,889,995A A $8,820,256A
Less: Billings or cash receivedA A (9,280,987)A A (8,178,309) Contract assetsA $609,008A A $641,947A A Contract
LiabilitiesA Contract liabilities on uncompleted contracts representbillings and/or cash received that exceed cumulative
revenues recognized on uncompleted contracts accounted for under the cost-to-costinput method, which recognizes
revenues based on the ratio of the cost incurred to total estimated costs.A Contract liabilities on services and consulting
revenuesrepresent billings and/or cash received in excess of revenue recognized on service agreements that are not
accounted for under the cost-to-costinput method.A At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, contractliabilities
on uncompleted contracts and contract liabilities on services and consulting consisted of the following: Schedule of
contract liabilities on uncompleted contractsA AAA AA A A September 30, 2024A A December 31, 2023A Billings
and/or cash receipts on uncompleted contractsA $1,264,658A A $1,264,658A Less: Cumulative revenues recognizedA
A (856,743)A A (199,976) Contract liabilities, technology systems, currentA A 407,915A A A 1,064,682A Contract
liabilities, services and consulting, currentA A 2,574,298A A A 601,561A Total contract liabilities, currentA
$2,982,213A A $1,666,243A Total contract liabilities, services and consulting, non-currentA $7,947,755A A $a€”A
A A A Contract liabilities at December 31, 2023 were $1,666,243;0f which $656,767 for technology systems and
$582,877 in services and consulting have been recognized as of September 30, 2024.A The Company expects to
recognize all current contractliabilities within 12 months from the respective consolidated balance sheet date.A In May
2024, the Company recorded aninitial deferred revenue as a contract liability in the amount of $11,161,4280f which
$199,008related to a pilot program was immediately recognized as revenue (See Note 3). This contract liability resulted
from a five-yearcontract with a customer where the Company received non-monetary consideration recorded as
intangible assets (See Note 3). Thistransaction was accounted for under ASC 606-10-32-21 through ASC-606-10-32-24,
Non-Cash Consideration. The performance obligations,which include various support and maintenance services will be
recognized as revenue pro-rata over time during the five-yearcontract term. The current contract liabilities of
$2,192,484for just this contract as of September 30, 2024 relate to the portion of the contract value the Company
expects to recognizepro-rata within the next twelve months. The non-current contract liabilities of $7,947,755as of
September 30, 2024 represent the portion of the contract value that is expected to be recognized pro-rata beyond the
nexttwelve months. If the Digital Image License Agreement is terminated prior to the completion of the five-year term,
then the customerwill pay for the maintenance and support services annually in cash.As of September 30, 2024 the
balance incontract liabilities pertaining to the above agreement is as follows: Schedule of balance in contract liabilities
A A A A Calendar Year A A A Amount A A 2024 A A $548,120A A 2025A A A 2,192,484 A A 2026 A A A
2,192,484 A A 2027 A A A 2,192,484 A A 2028 A A A 2,192,484 A A 2029 A A A 822,182 A A Total Contract
Liabilities A A $ 10,140,238 A AAA 29A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A A Disaggregation
of Revenue A The Company is following the guidance of ASC 606-10-55-296and 297 for disaggregation of revenue.
Accordingly, revenue has been disaggregated according to the nature, amount, timing and uncertaintyof revenue and
cash flows. We are providing qualitative and quantitative disclosures. A Qualitative: A A 1. We have four distinct
revenue sources: A A a. Technology Systems (Turnkey, engineered projects); A A b. Al Technology (Associated
maintenance and support services); A A c. Technical Support (Licensing and professional services related to auditing
of data center assets); and A A d. Consulting Services (Predetermined algorithms to provide important operating
information to the users of our systems). A A 2. We currently operate in North America including the USA, Mexico and
Canada. A A 3. Our customers include rail transportation, commercial, government, banking and IT suppliers. A A 4.
Our services & maintenance contracts are fixed price and fall into two duration types: A A a. Turnkey engineered
projects and professional service contracts that are less than one year in duration and are typically one to two quarters
in length; and A A b. Maintenance and support contracts ranging from one to five years in length. AA 30A DUOS
TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaud1ted)A AA Quantitative: A For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024
Schedule of disaggregation of revenueA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA SegmentsA RailA A CommercialA A
GovernmentA A Artificial IntelligenceA A TotalA Prlmary Geographlcal MarketsA A AA AAA AAA AAA AA AA
a€”
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$1,686,456AAA Main enance and SupportA A 913,228A A A 505, 982AA A a€”A A Aa€”A A A1,419,210A AlgorithmsA
A 133,244A A Aae”AA Aae”AA Aa€”’AA A133,244A AA $2,732,928A A $505,982A A $a€"AA $a€”A A

$3,238,910A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Timing of Revenue RecognitionA AAAA AAAA AAAA
AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Goods transferred over timeA $1,686,456A A $4€”A A
$a€”A A $4€”A A $1,686,456A Services transferred over timeA A 1,046,472A A A 505,982A A Aa€”AA Aa€”’AA

A 1,552,454A A A $2,732,928AA $505,982A A $a€”A A $a€”A A $3,238,910A AAA 31A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES
GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A A For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2023 AA AAA
AAA AAA AAA AA SegmentsA RailA A CommercialA A GovernmentA A Artificial IntelligenceA A TotalA
Primary Geographical MarketsA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA A A AAA
$1,333,556A A $19,220A A $a€”"A A $178,147A A $1,530,923A A
Goods and Service LinesA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA A A
Turnkey PI‘OJeCtSA $705, 849A A $a€"AA $a€"AA $a€”A A $705, 849A M
A19,220AA Aa€”AA Aa€"AA A646,927A AlgorithmsA A &€”A A A a€”
A A $1,333,556A A $19,220A A $a€"A A $178,147A A $1,530,923A AA A
Timing of Revenue RecognitionA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA AAAAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA

A A A Goods transferred over timeA $705 849A A $a€”A A $a€"A A $a€ $705,849A Services transferred over
timeA A 627,707A A A 19,220A A A a€”AA A 178,147A A A 825,074A AA $1 333,556A A $19,220A A $&4€"A A
$178,147A A $1,530,923A A A A For the Nine Months Ended September 30,2024 AA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA
SegmentsA RallAA CommercialA A GovernmentA A Artificial IntelhgenceAA TotalA Primary Geographical
MarketsA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAAAAAA AAA AAA AAA AA North AmericaA $5,314, 104A A
$505,982A A $a€”A A
LinesA AAAA AA
$2,221,310A A $a€
Aae”’A A Aag”
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$5,314,104A A $505,982A A $a€”A A $a€”A A $5,820,086A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Timing of
Revenue RecognitionA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA AAAAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Goods
transferred over timeA $2,221,310A A $a€"A A $a€”A A $4€”"A A $2,221,310A Services transferred over timeA

A 3,092,794A A A505,982A A Aae”AA Aa€”A A A3,598,776A AA $5,314,104A A $505,982A A $a€”A A $4€”A A
$5,820,086A A A 32A° DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaud1ted)A A For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2023 AA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA SegmentsA RailA A CommercialA A GovernmentA A
Artificial IntelligenceA A TotalA Primary Geographical MarketsA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA AA AA A
AAA AAA AA North AmericaA $5,247,291A A $90,432A A $11,353A A $596,194A A $5,945,270A A

AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Major Goods and Service LinesA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA AA
AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Turnkey ProjectsA $3,390,555A A $13,552A A $a€"A A $4€"A A
$3,404,107A Maintenance and SupportA A 1,856,736A A A 76,880AA A 11,353A A Aa€”AA A 1,944,969A
AlgorithmsA A 4€"AA Aa€"AA Aa€”AA A'596,194A A A 596,194A A A $5,247,291A A $90,432A A $11,353A A

$596,194A A $5,945,270A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Timing of Revenue RecognitionA AAA A
AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Goods transferred over timeA
$3,390,555A A $13,552A A $a€”A A $4€”A A $3,404,107A Services transferred over timeA A 1,856,736A A
A76,880AA A11,353A A A596,194A A A 2,541,163A AA $5,247,291A A $90,432A A $11,353A A $596,194A A
$5,945,270A A NOTE 8 4€“ DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANA The Company has a 401(k)-retirement savings plan
(thea€0e401(k) Plana€) covering all eligible employees. The 401(k) Plan allows employees to defer a portion of their
annual compensation,and the Company may match a portion of the employeesa€™ contributions generally after the first
nine months of service. During thethree months ended September 30, 2024, the Company matched 100% of the first 4%
of eligible employee compensation that was contributedto the 401(k) Plan. For the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2024, the Company recognized expense for matching cash contributionsto the 401(k) Plan totaling
$50,977 and $162,415, respectively.A A NOTE 9 4€“ RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONSA Frank Lonegro serves on the
Board of Directorsand is a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Lonegro is the Chief Executive Officer of Landstar
System, Inc.(&€ceLandstara€), based in Jacksonville, Florida. The Company has previously utilized Landstar for shipping
servicesincluding transporting large items. Most recently, Landstar was the designated vendor involved in shipping an
Edge Data Center to anAmtrak site in Secaucus, New Jersey. Mr. Lonegro was not involved in the selection of his
company by Duos, with whom there was anexisting relationship pre-dating Mr. Lonegroa€™s appointment to the Board
of Duos. Mr. Lonegro did not participate in any Boarddiscussions or votes relating to the selection of Landstar nor
approval of the transactions with Landstar. The terms of thesetransactions were reviewed and approved by the
management team, which concluded that they are fair and reasonable to the Company andon terms no less favorable
than could have been obtained from an unaffiliated party. For the nine months ended September 30, 2024and
September 30, 2023 the Company expensed $48,257and $15,117,respectively. As of September 30, 2024 and December
31, 2023, the amounts owed were zero 0 and $33,812, respectively, and areincluded in accounts payable in the
accompanying balance sheets.A A 33A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A NOTE 10 4€“ SALE
OF ASSETSA On June 29, 2023, the Company completed a transactionwhereby it sold assets related to its Integrated
Correctional Automation System (iCAS) business with a single customer. In the fourthquarter of 2022, the Company
elected to not renew a support contract due to the limited nature of the business. The transaction was completedwith a
third-party buyer of which the Companya€ ™ s former and now current Chief Financial Officer is a director. Said officer
did notparticipate in the transaction on behalf of the Company.A The assets of the iCAS business were sold for a
convertiblepromissory note with a principal amount of $165,000 with a 10% original issue discount as well as common
stock purchase warrants. Thenote matures in 2 years from the date of sale and is convertible immediately through the
later of the maturity date or payment by theborrower of the default amount, as defined in the note, into shares of the
buyerda€™s common stock at a conversion price of $0.0030r 55,000,000 shares. The conversion of the note carries
restrictions which include limiting conversion to the extent it would exceed4.99% of the common stock outstanding of
the buyer. The convertible promissory note is subject to standard anti-dilution provisions.A The common stock purchase
warrants are for a totalof 55,000,000 common shares of the buyer at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The warrants
are subject to standard anti-dilution provisions.The warrants are not exercisable until on or after six months from the
issuance date and no later than on or before the third anniversaryof the issuance date. The Company may exercise the
warrants at any time after the six-month anniversary of the issuance date on a cashlessbasis if there is no effective
registration statement covering the resale of the Warrant Shares at prevailing market prices by the holder.The exercise
of these warrants is subject to beneficial ownership limits of 4.99% which may be increased by the holder up to 9.99%
asdefined in the warrant. Given that the shares carried no intrinsic value at the time of the transaction and that the
overall fair valueis de minimis, the Company has not recorded the warrants associated with the transaction.A The
Company recognized a gain on sale of assets 0f$150,000, which is included in other income in the second quarter of
2023.A The original issue discount is being accrued intointerest income over the term of the note.A The note receivable
was recorded as follows on September30, 2024: Schedule of note receivableA A A A A September 30, 2024A
Convertible note receivableA $165,000A Unamortized discountA A (5,625) Convertible note receivable, netA
$159,375A A A A 34A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONDENSED NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSeptember 30, 2024(Unaudited)A A A NOTE 11 4€“ SUBSEQUENT
EVENTSA On October 2, 2024, two holders of our Series E PreferredStock converted an aggregate of 52 shares of
Series E Preferred Stock into 19,922 shares of Common Stock.A The Company filed a Registration Statement on FormS-
8 covering the additional shares or share equivalents issuable under the 2021 Plan as a result of the amendment
approved by shareholderson September 30, 2024. The registration statement was declared effective on October 9,
2024.A On October 8, 2024, two holders of our Series E PreferredStock converted an aggregate of 73 shares of Series E
Preferred Stock into 27,970 shares of Common Stock.A On October 24, 2024, a holder of our Series D PreferredStock
converted 100 shares of Series D Preferred Stock into 33,334 shares of Common Stock.A On October 16, 2024, the
Company entered into a Master Lease Agreement(the a€ceMaster Leasea€) to lease three Edge Data Centers and
related equipment (the &€oeData Centersa€) for a term of66 months beginning November 1, 2024. The Data Centers are
expected to be used by Duos Edge Al, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary ofthe Company, for the provision of information
technology and communications services for users operating in rural areas. The Master Leaseprovides for monthly
payments over 66 months starting December 10, 2024. The first six payments shall each be $3,900.00 (or $1,300.00per
unit). For months seven through 66 (or any portion thereof), the monthly payments shall each be $43,981.38 (or
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$14,660.46 per unit).The final payment is due June 10, 2030, and upon payment in full of all the payments due under
the Master Lease the Company will thenpurchase the Data Centers for $1.00.A Subsequent to the balance sheet date
and throughNovember 13, 2024 the Company issued an aggregate of 279,534shares of common stock at a weighted
average price of $3.92per share through its At-The-Market (ATM) offering program, generating total net proceeds of
approximately $1,062,604.A On November 14, 2024, the Company and Duos Edge Alamended the secured promissory
notes dated July 22, 2024 to provide that the funds raised by the Companya€™s a€ceat the marketa€facility no longer
had to be deposited in a blocked account subject to the lendersa€™ security interest and used solely to repay thenotes.
The Company may use such funds for general corporate purposes provided that an amount equal to the sum of all funds
raised by thea€coeat the marketa€ facility from and after November 14, 2024 through December 1, 2025 and not
deposited in the blocked accountmust be deposited in the blocked account on or before December 1, 2025.A A A 35A
A A A A Item 2. Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysisof Financial Condition and Results of Operation.A This
quarterly report on Form 10-Q and other reportsfiled by Duos Technologies Group, Inc., and its operating subsidiaries,
Duos Technologies, Inc. (3€eDuosa€), Duos Edge Al, Inc.(a€eEdgea€) and Duos Energy Corporation (a€ceEnergya€)
(Duos Technologies Group, Inc., Duos and Edge, collectively thea€ceCompanya€ a€ewea€, a€ocoura€, and d€ceusat)
from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission(the 4€0eSECa€) contain or may contain forward-
looking statements and information that are based upon beliefs of, and informationcurrently available to, the
Companya€™s management as well as estimates and assumptions made by Companya€™s management. Readersare
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are only predictions and speak only
as of the datehereof. When used in the filings, the words a€oeanticipate,a€ a€mbelieve,a€ a€ceestimate,a€
a€eexpect,a€a€cefuture,a€ a€ceintend,a€ a€ceplan,a€ a€meaim,a€ a€ceproject,a€ a€cetarget,a€ a€cewill,a€a€emay,a€
a€omeshould,a€ d€oeforecasta€ or the negative of these terms and similar expressions as they relateto the Company or
the Companya€™s management identify forward-looking statements. Such statements typically address the
Companya€ ™ sexpected future business and financial performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties, assumptions,
and other factors, includingthe risks contained in the a&€ceRisk Factorsa€ section of the Companya€™s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endedDecember 31, 2023, relating to the Companya€™s industry, the Companya€™s
operations and results of operations, and any businessesthat the Company may acquire. Should one or more of these
risks or uncertainties materialize, or should the underlying assumptions proveincorrect, actual results may differ
materially from those anticipated, believed, estimated, expected, intended, or planned.A These factors include, but are
not limited to,risks related to the Companya€™s ability to continue as a going concern, the Companya€™s ability to
generate sufficient cash tocontinue and expand operations, the competitive environment generally and in the
Companya€™s specific market areas, changes in technology,the availability of and the terms of financing, changes in
costs and availability of goods and services, economic conditions in generaland in the Companya€™s specific market
areas, changes in federal, state and/or local government laws and regulations potentially affectingthe use of the
Companya€™s technology, changes in operating strategy or development plans and the ability to attract and retain
qualifiedpersonnel. The Company cautions that the foregoing list of risks, uncertainties and factors is not exclusive.
Additional information concerningthese and other risk factors is contained in the Companya€ ™ s most recently filed
Annual Report on Form 10-K, subsequent QuarterlyReports on Form 10-Q, recent Current Reports on Form 8-K, and
other filings filed by the Company with the SEC, which are available atthe SECa€™ s website, http://www.sec.gov. The
Company believes its plans, intentions and expectations reflected in or suggested bythese forward-looking statements
are based on reasonable assumptions. No assurance, however, can be given that the Company will achieveor realize
these plans, intentions or expectations. Indeed, it is likely that some of the Companya€™ s assumptions may prove to
beincorrect. The Companya€™s actual results and financial position may vary from those projected or implied in the
forward-looking statementsand the variances may be material. Each forward-looking statement speaks only as of the
date of the particular statement. We do not undertakeor accept any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any
updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect anychange in our expectations or any change in
events, conditions or circumstances on which any forward-looking statement is based, exceptas required by law. All
subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements concerning the Company or other matters attributable tothe
Company or any person acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements
above.A Our financial statements are prepared in accordancewith accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (€@ GAAP&€). These accounting principles require us to makecertain estimates, judgments and
assumptions. We believe that the estimates, judgments and assumptions upon which we rely are reasonablebased upon
information available to us at the time that these estimates, judgments and assumptions are made. These estimates,
judgmentsand assumptions can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements as well as the reportedamounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. Our financial
statements would be affected to the extent there are materialdifferences between these estimates and actual results. In
many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is specificallydictated by GAAP and does not require
managementa€™s judgment in its application. There are also areas in which managementa€ ™ sjudgment in selecting
any available alternative would not produce a materially different result. The following discussion should be readin
conjunction with our financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report.A OverviewA The
Company, operating under its brand name duostech,develops and deploys technology systems with focus on inspecting
and evaluating moving vehicles. Its technology focus is within the VisionTechnology market sector and, more
specifically, the Machine Vision subsector. Machine Vision companies provide imaging-based automaticinspection and
analysis for process control for industry with potential expansion into other markets. Duos has developed key
technologiesover the past several years in software, industry specific hardware and artificial intelligence and has
demonstrated industrial strengthusability of its systems supporting rail, logistics and intermodal businesses that
streamline operations, improve safety and reduce costs.Our team includes engineering subject matter expertise in
hardware, software, and information technology as well as industry specificapplications of artificial intelligence also
referred to as Expert Artificial Intelligence. We also have specific industry experts inthe rail industry on staff and as
consultants.A Duos is currently developing industry solutions for its target marketswhich will address rail, trucking,
aviation and other vehicle-based processes.A A 36A A A A A In addition, the Company has begun using itspatented
technology and considerable experience in deploying information technology (IT) investments for the provision of Edge
DataCenters, enabling local, high-speed processing in rural and underserved areas. The Company has recently
announced that effectiveearly in the third quarter of 2024, it will be expanding into the market for the provision of
bespoke Edge Data Centers (EDCs) forremote education and healthcare facilities as well as other applications where
high-speed, local processing is required. In order tofacilitate this, the Company formed a new subsidiary, Duos Edge Al



to pursue this market and has invested approximately $1,500,000in acquiring assets to begin marketing the solution to
defined markets. Additionally, Duos has formed a third subsidiary, DuosEnergy Corporation which began operations in
the second half of 2024. The new subsidiary is focused on the burgeoning market forenergy to power data centers and
is currently engaged in some consulting for organizations looking to acquire power generationassets. It is also expected
to engage in operations work in this space up to and including the build out of data center powerplants.A Duosa€™
legacy offering, the Railcar InspectionPortal (RIP), will continue to be the main revenue driver for the consolidated
business. The RIP provides both freight and transit railroadcustomers and select government agencies the ability to
conduct fully remote railcar inspections of trains while they are moving at fullspeed. The RIP utilizes a variety of
sophisticated optical, laser and speed sensors to scan each passing railcar to create a high-resolutionimage-set of the
top, sides and undercarriage. These images are then processed with our edge data center using artificial
intelligence(AI) algorithms to identify safety and security defects on each railcar. The algorithms are developed in
conjunction with industrial applicationexperts, in this case resident Railcar Mechanical Engineers, to provide specific
guidance in the analysis (&€cehuman in the loopa€).Within seconds of the railcar passing through the RIP, a detailed
report is sent to the customer where they are able to take action onidentified issues. This solution has the potential to
transform the railroad industry immediately, increasing safety, improving efficiencyand reducing costs. The Company
has already deployed this system with several Class 1 railroads and anticipates an increased demand fromtransit and
other railroad customers along with selected government agencies that operate and/or manage rail traffic. The
Company hasdeployed RIPs in Canada, Mexico and the United States and anticipates expanding this solution into
Europe, Asia and the Middle East incoming years. The Company has recently secured two strategic patents for the
overall concept and applied technology for railcar scanningand the Company is expecting further patent awards in the
coming months for other related technologies.A The Company has also developed the Automated LogisticsInformation
System (ALIS) which automates gatehouse operations where transport trucks enter and exit large logistics and
intermodal facilities.This solution incorporates a similar set of sensors, data processing and artificial intelligence to
streamline the customera€™s logisticstransactions and tracking and can also automate the security and safety
inspection if called for. The Company is evaluating other solutionsfor moving vehicles including aircraft, which could
provide similar benefits in terms of safety and efficiency for required inspectionsas part of an operations process. The
Company is not currently actively pursing further customers for ALIS but will continue to analyzethe potential market
and expects to deploy an upgraded Truck Inspector Portal (TIP) which uses the same technology and lessons
learnedfrom ALIS and RIP systems at some point in the future.A We have developed two proprietary solutions that
operateour software and artificial intelligence. centracoA® is an Enterprise Information Management Software
platform that consolidates dataand events from multiple sources into a unified and distributive user interface.
Customized to the end usera€™s Concept of Operations(CONOPS), it provides improved situational awareness and data
visualization for operational objectives compared to traditional manualinspections. truevue3604,¢ is our fully
integrated platform that we utilize to develop and deploy Artificial Intelligence (AI) algorithms,including Machine
Learning, Computer Vision, Object Detection and Deep Neural Network-based processing for real-time

applications.A These same Artificial Intelligence applications havebegun to open up other opportunities for the
Company to provide revenue producing solutions with potentially high market adoption.A In the last quarter of 2022,
the Company elected notto renew a support contract for its Integrated Correctional Automation System (iCAS) for one
customer. The Company subsequently sold itsiCAS assets to a buyer during the second quarter of 2023 for $165,000 via
a convertible note.A The year 2022 ushered in a new phase in the Companya€ ™ sdevelopment. Although we continue to
see an extension of challenges faced in past years, we also see positive changes and opportunitiesfor our business that
will be discussed in greater detail herein. They include:A A- A Introducing a new a€cesubscriptiona€ based offering for
access to data and images by a much broader target market including Class 1 railroads, railcar owners and lessors, and
short-line railroads. A A- A Owning and operating a network of RIPs with multiple subscribers outside of the
Companya€™s traditional customer base. A A- A Selling customized RIPs to Class 1, short-line and other industrial
companies where specialized applications or routes demand a bespoke solution. A A- A Using our current operations
experience within a€ceedge data centersa€(as deployed for our Railcar Inspection Portal) to drive additional revenues
within other markets requiring this type of solution. AA 37A A A A Prospects and OutlookA The Companya€™s
focusfor the last several years was to improve operational and technical execution which will continue into the
foreseeable future. This weexpect will enable the commercial side of the business to expand delivery of the
Companya€™s products and services into existing customersand to expand and diversify our current customer base as
well as enter new markets. The Companya€™s primary customers have indicatedreadiness to order more equipment
and services should the Company execute as expected on key deliverables. With the Company working towarda
subscription platform approach for current and planned offerings and its expansion of its artificial intelligence offering,
this willalso open up additional commercial avenues to the Company. Historically, the Company has been focused on
large, one-time sales with thesubscription opportunities representing an expanded addressable market with an
increasing emphasis on recurring revenues.A The Company expanded itsfocus in the rail industry to encompass
passenger transportation and was awarded a large, multi-year contract with a national rail carrierin the second half of
2022. The Company has been developing and constructing the enhanced systems for this contract and anticipates thatit
will install a high performance, two-RIP solution for the carrier in 2024, with a long-term services agreement
commencing upon deliveryof the system.A The Company expects to expand its business in the provision of
specializeddata centers and in the building, operations and management of power generation assets for all types of data
centers and other projectswhich require the provision of power.A Although the Companya€™s prospects for
futurerevenue growth are anticipated to be favorable, investing in our securities involves risk and careful consideration
should be made beforedeciding to purchase our securities. There are many risks that affect our business and results of
operations, some of which are beyondour control and unexpected macro events can have a severe impact on the
business. Please see the risk factors identified in a€oeltem1A a€“ Risk Factorsa€ of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the SEC on April 1, 2024.A Results of Operations A The following discussion should be read in
conjunctionwith the unaudited financial statements included in this report.A Comparison for the Three Months Ended
September30, 2024 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2023 A The following table sets forth a summary
of our unauditedConsolidated Statements of Operations and is used in the following discussions of our results of
operations:A A A For the Three Months EndedA A A September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A AA AAA AA
RevenuesA $3,238,910A A $1,530,923A Cost of revenuesA A 2,319,811A A A 1,304,335A Gross marginA

A 919,099A A A 226,588A Operating expensesA A 2,839,379A A A 3,197,565A Loss from operationsA

A (1,920,280)A A (2,970,977) Other incomeA A 518,617A A A 23,241A NetlossA $(1,401,663)A $(2,947,736)



AAAA 38A A AARevenuesA A A For the Three Months EndedA A A September 30,A AA 2024A A 2023AA %
ChangeA Revenues:A AAA AAA A A Technology systemsA $1,686,456A A $705,849A A A 139% Services and
consultingA A 1,552,454A A A 825,074A A A 88% Total revenuesA $3,238,910A A $1,530,923A A A 112%

A A A A The increase in overall revenues for the quarter endedSeptember 30, 2024, compared to the quarter ended
September 30, 2023, is driven largely by an equitable adjustment related to our twohigh-speed Railcar Inspection
Portals project, which falls within our technology systems business segment. This adjustment added $1.4million to the
contracta€™s total value, with a substantial portion recognized in the third quarter. We believe that the customeris
approaching the completion of the local site preparation and is preparing for field installation later this year.
Additionally, theCompany continues to see opportunities for expansion of its programs with existing customers. In spite
of the timing delays that continueto impact the quarterly results, management remains confident in the long-term
potential of the RIP product. The increase in the servicesportion of our revenues stems from the addition of new Al and
subscription customers that were not present in the same quarter last yearas well as increases in service contract
revenue due to higher service contract prices. We also generated $505,982 in services and consultingrevenue from
power consulting work, which was new to this quarter. The Company expects growth with new revenue from existing
customers,including services revenue as the result of new maintenance contracts being established on installations
coming on-line during 2025. TheCompany anticipates revenue growth from new and existing customers related to the
subscription offering starting in the back end of 2024and into 2025. The Company also anticipates renewals of existing
and backlog contracts and a shift to the next generation of technologysystems which are currently being manufactured
and expect to be completed during early 2025.A A Cost of RevenuesA A A For the Three Months Ended September
30,A AA 2024A A 2023A A % ChangeA Cost of revenues:A AAA AAA AA Technology systemsA $947, 563A A
$883,836A A A 7% Services and consultlngA A 1,372,248A A A 420,499A A A 226% Total cost of revenuesA
$2,319,811A A $1,304,335A A A 78% A A A A Cost of revenues largely comprises equipment and labornecessary to
support the implementation of new systems and support and maintenance of existing systems and software

projects.A During the three months ended September 30,2024, the cost of revenues on technology systems increased
compared to the equivalent period in 2023. This increase is primarily dueto the Company continuing the procurement
and production of the Canopies for our two high-speed Railcar Inspection Portals duringthe third quarter of 2024. We
are approaching the end of the manufacturing cycle and beginning preparations for field installationlater in the year.
Additionally, the Company records certain fixed, operating and servicing costs for both technology systems andservices
and consulting. While we expect that macro-economic factors will continue to drive prices, the Company continues to
manageits costs and, where possible, pass through increased costs to customers in the form of higher prices, although
this is not assured.The cost of revenues for services and consulting increased in the three months ended September 30,
2024, compared to the same periodlast year. This increase is primarily due to $548,121 in amortization expense of the
intangible asset related to a nonmonetarytransaction, which was not present in the corresponding period of 2023. The
Company also generated $505,982 in services andconsulting revenue from power consulting work, which was provided
at cost, further increasing the cost of revenue for services andconsulting, which was also not present in the
corresponding period of 2023.A A 39A A Gross MarginA AA A A For the Three Months EndedSeptember 30, A A

A A 2024A A 2023A A % ChangeA AA AAA AAA AA RevenuesA $3,238,910A A $1,530,923A A A 112% Cost of
revenuesA A 2,319,811A A A 1,304,335A A A 78% Gross marginA $919,099A A $226,588A A A 306% A Gross margin
increased for the third quarterof 2024 as compared to the same period in 2023. The increase in margin was primarily
due to the equitable adjustment associated with ourtwo high-speed, transit-focused Railcar Inspection Portals. These
same project revenues and subsequent margin contributions were absentduring the third quarter of 2023. The
Company also generated $505,982 in services and consulting revenue from power consulting work, whichwas provided
at cost, further diluting the overall gross margin. These same project revenues and subsequent margin impacts were
absentduring the third quarter of 2023. It should be noted that when comparing the results between two periods, the
stage of completion formanufacturing and installation can factor into those comparisons and should be taken into
account when analyzing those periods.Operating ExpensesA A A A A For the Three Months EndedSeptember 30, A A
A A 2024A A 2023A A % ChangeA Operating expenses:A AAAA AAAA AAA Sales and marketingA

$471,411A A $353,386A A A 33% Research and developmentA A 396,610A A A 450,006A A A -12% General and
administrationA A 1,971,358A A A 2,394,173A A A -18% Total operating expensesA $2,839,379A A $3,197,565A A

A -11% A A A During the three months ended September 30, 2024,the Company experienced a decrease in overall
operating expenses compared to the same period in 2023. There was a significant uptick insales and marketing costs,
primarily due to an expansion in staff after strengthening our commercial team in the latter half of 2023 inpreparation
for entering new markets. Conversely, research and development expenses fell by 12% owing to reduced personnel and
scaled-backtesting of prospective technologies. Moreover, general and administrative expenses decreased by 18% due
to a reduction in personnel, areduction in Stock Compensation and a reduction in legal and consulting spend compared
to the same period in 2023. Overall, the Companycontinues to focus on stabilizing operating expenses while meeting
the increased needs of our customers.A A 40A A Loss from OperationsA The loss from operations for the three months
endedSeptember 30, 2024 and 2023 was $1,920,280 and $2,970,977, respectively. The decrease in loss from operations
was primarily the resultof higher revenues recorded in the quarter related to the two high-speed RIPs for a passenger
transit client accompanied by a plannedreduction in expenses which resulted in an overall decrease in operating loss
compared to the same quarter in 2023.A Other Income/ExpenseA Other income for the three months ended
September30, 2024, was $518,617 and $23,241 for the comparative period in 2023. The significant increase in other
income is primarily due to again from the fair value adjustment of the warrant liability and gain on extinguishment of
warrant liabilities resulting from the exerciseof the warrants. There was no such transaction in 2023. Interest expense
for the three months ended September 30, 2024, was $116,396 and$1,406 for the comparative period in 2023. The
increase in interest expense is primarily due to the amortization of the debt discounton the $2.2 million note and the
associated monthly interest expense in 2024; this note had not been entered into in 2023.A Net LossA The net loss for
the three months ended September30, 2024 and 2023 was $1,401,663 and $2,947,736, respectively. The 53% decrease
in net loss was mostly attributed to the increase in revenuesas described above. Net loss per common share was $0.18
and $0.41 for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.A Comparison for the Nine Months
Ended September30, 2024 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023 A The following table sets forth a
summary of our unauditedConsolidated Statements of Operations and is used in the following discussions of our results
of operations:A AA A A For the Nine Months EndedSeptember 30, AA AA 2024A A 2023A AA AAA AA
RevenuesA $5,820,086A A $5,945,270A Cost of revenuesA A 5,020,919A A A 4,940,173A Gross marginA

A 799,167A A A 1,005,097A Operating expensesA A 8,696,909A A A 9,271,122A Loss from operationsA



A (7,897,742)A A (8,266,025) Other incomeA A 539,599A A A 185,206A Net lossA $(7,358,143)A $(8,080,819) A A
41A A ARevenuesA AA A A For the Nine Months EndedSeptember 30, AA A A 2024A A 2023A A % ChangeA
Revenues:A AAA AAA AA Technology systemsA $2,221,310A A $3,404,107A A A -35% Services and consultingA
A 3,598,776A A A 2,541,163A A A 42% Total revenuesA $5,820,086A A $5,945,270A A A -2% A A A A Thedecrease in
overall revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the nine months ended September 30,
2023, isprimarily attributed to delays outside of the Companya€™s control with deployment of our two high-speed
Railcar InspectionPortals, which are recorded in the technology systems portion of our business. Although these
systems were largely ready fordeployment in 2023, customer delays at the deployment site prevented installation even
though these two high-speed Railcarlnspection Portals were deep into their production and manufacturing phases,
which did not allow us to record the next phase ofrecognition. The Company was able to contract an equitable
adjustment related to our two high-speed Railcar Inspection Portalsproject in the third quarter of 2024. This adjustment
added $1.4 million to the contracta€™ s total value, with a substantialportion recognized in the third quarter of 2024.
We believe that the customer is approaching the completion of the local sitepreparation and is preparing for field
installation later this year. Additionally, the Company continues to see opportunities forexpansion of its programs with
existing customers. In spite of the timing delays that continue to impact results, management remainsconfident in the
long-term potential of the RIP product. The increase in the services portion of our revenues stems from theaddition of
new Al and subscription customers that were not present in the same quarter last year as well as increases in
servicecontract revenue due to higher service contract prices. We also generated $505,982 in services and consulting
revenue from powerconsulting work, which was new to this period. The Company expects growth with new revenue
from existing customers, includingservices revenue as the result of new maintenance contracts being established on
installations coming on-line during 2025. TheCompany anticipates revenue growth from new and existing customers
related to the subscription offering starting in the back end 0f2024 and into 2025. The Company also anticipates
renewals of existing and backlog contracts and a shift to the next generation oftechnology systems which are currently
being manufactured and expect to be completed during early 2025.A A Cost of RevenuesA A A A A For the Nine
Months EndedSeptember 30, AA A A 2024A A 2023A A % ChangeA Cost of revenues:A AAA AAA AA
Technology systemsA $2,311,912A A $3,723,151A A A -38% Services and consultingA A 2,709,007A A

A 1,217,022A A A 123% Total cost of revenuesA $5,020,919A A $4,940,173A A A 2% A A A A Cost of revenues largely
comprises equipment and labornecessary to support the implementation of new systems and support and maintenance
of existing systems and software projects.A During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, thecost of revenues on
technology systems decreased compared to the equivalent period in 2023. This reduction is primarily due to the
Companycontinuing the production and manufacturing phase of our two high-speed Railcar Inspection Portals during
the same period of 2023. Bythe third quarter of 2024, we are approaching the end of the manufacturing cycle and
beginning preparations for field installation laterin the year, and thereby contributing to the decrease in cost of
revenues year-over-year related to technology systems. Additionally, theCompany records certain fixed, operating and
servicing costs for both technology systems and services and consulting. While we expectthat macro-economic factors
will continue to drive prices, the Company continues to manage its costs and, where possible, pass throughincreased
costs to customers in the form of higher prices, although this is not assured.A The cost of revenues for services and
consultingincreased in the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period last year. This
increase is primarily due to $1,021,190in amortization expense of the intangible asset related to a nonmonetary
transaction, which was not present in the corresponding periodof 2023. The Company also generated $505,982 in
services and consulting revenue from power consulting work, which was provided at cost,further increasing the cost of
revenue for services and consulting, which was also not present in the corresponding period of 2023.A A 42A A Gross
MarginA AA A A For the Nine Months EndedSeptember 30, AA AA 2024A A 2023A A % ChangeA AA AAA
AAA AA RevenuesA $5,820,086A A $5,945,270A A A -2% Cost of revenuesA A 5,020,919A A A 4,940,173A A A 2%
Gross marginA $799,167A A $1,005,097A A A -21% A A Gross margin decreased during the nine monthsended
September 30, 2024, as compared to the same period in 2023 largely in line with the decline in revenue. As noted
above, the decreasein margin was a direct result of the timing of business activity related to the manufacturing of two
high-speed, transit-focused Railcarlnspection Portals. Those same project revenues and subsequent margin
contributions were not present during the first and second quartersof 2024. The Company also generated $505,982 in
services and consulting revenue from power consulting work, which was provided at cost,further diluting the overall
gross margin. These same project revenues and subsequent margin impacts were absent during the first ninemonths of
2023. It should be noted that when comparing the results between two periods, the stage of completion for
manufacturing andinstallation can factor into those comparisons and should be taken into account when analyzing
those periods.A Operating ExpensesA A A A A For the Nine Months EndedSeptember 30, AA AA 2024A A 2023A A
% ChangeA Operating expenses:A AAAA AAAA AAA Sales and marketingA $1,737,353A A $962,040A A A 81%
Research and developmentA A 1,168,752A A A 1,392,692A A A -16% General and administrationA A 5,790,804A A

A 6,916,390A A A -16% Total operating expensesA $8,696,909A A $9,271,122A A A -6% A A During the nine months
ended September 30, 2024, theCompany experienced a decrease in overall operating expenses compared to the same
period in 2023. There was a significant uptick in salesand marketing costs, primarily due to an expansion in staff after
strengthening our commercial team in the latter half of 2023 in preparationfor entering new markets. Conversely,
research and development expenses fell by 16% owing to reduced personnel and scaled-back testingof prospective
technologies. Moreover, general and administrative expenses decreased by 16% due to a reduction in personnel and
personnelrelated expenses as well as a decrease in consulting and legal expenses compared to the same period in 2023.
Overall, the Company continuesto focus on stabilizing operating expenses while meeting the increased needs of our
customers. A Loss from OperationsA The loss from operations for the nine months endedSeptember 30, 2024 and 2023
was $7,897,742 and $8,266,025, respectively. The decrease in loss from operations was primarily the resultof planned
decreases in operating expenses, which offset the impact of lower revenues recorded in the period as a consequence of
delaysin going to field for the two high-speed RIPs for a passenger transit client.A Other Income/ExpenseA Other
income for the nine months ended September 30,2024, was $539,999 and $185,206 for the comparative period in 2023.
The significant increase in other income is primarily due to a gainfrom the fair value adjustment of the warrant liability
and gain on extinguishment of warrant liabilities resulting from the exerciseof the warrants in 2024, whereas, in 2023,
other income included the sale of assets relating to the Integrated Correctional AutomationSystem (iCAS). Interest
expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, was $117,991 and $5,816 for the comparative period in
2023.The increase is primarily due to the amortization of the debt discount on the $2.2 million note and the associated
monthly interest expensein 2024; this note had not been entered into in 2023.A A 43A A Net LossA The net loss for



the nine months ended September 30,2024 and 2023 was $7,358,143 and $8,080,819, respectively. The 9% decrease in
net loss was mostly attributed to the decrease in operatingcosts as described above. Net loss per common share was
$0.98 and $1.12 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.A Liquidity and Capital
ResourcesA As of September 30, 2024, the Company has a workingcapital deficit of $1,600,154 and the Company had a
net loss of $7,358,143 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024.A Cash FlowsA The following table sets forth the
major componentsof our statements of cash flows data for the periods presented:A A A For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A Net cash used in operating activitiesA $(6,200,147)A $(5,637,072) Net cash
used in investing activitiesA A (1,555,544)A A (898,435) Net cash provided by financing activitiesA A 5,959,962A A

A 8,681,331A Net (decrease) increase in cashA $(1,795,729)A $2,145,824A A A Net cash used in operating activities
for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 was $6,200,147 and $5,637,072, respectively. The increase in
net cash used in operating activitiesfor the nine months ended September 30, 2024, was the result of cash outflows to
procure necessary materials and overall sales and marketing,general and administration expenses offset by cash
inflows from milestone payments related to current projects. A A Net cash used in investing activities for the
ninemonths ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 was $1,555,544 and $898,435, respectively, representing an increase
in the purchase of variousfixed assets including our three edge data centers that are currently being manufactured to
be deployed in the later half of 2024; theremainder includes the purchase of computer equipment and product and
software development and disbursements for patent costs.A A Net cash provided by financing activities for thenine
months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 was $5,959,962 and $8,681,331, respectively. Cash flows provided by
financing activitiesduring the first nine months of 2024 were primarily attributable to gross proceeds of approximately
$2,995,002 from issuances of SeriesD and Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, along with a combined total of
$1,096,532 in proceeds from the issuance of common stock viawarrant exercises of $899,521 and our At-The-Market
(ATM) offering program for proceeds of $197,011. Cash flows from financing activitiesduring the first nine months of
2023 were primarily attributable to the issuance of Series E and Series F Convertible Preferred Stockfor $9,000,000 of
gross proceeds offset by repayments of certain loans related to financing of insurance costs.A On a long-term basis, our
liquidity is dependent onthe continuation and expansion of operations and receipt of revenues. We believe our current
capital and revenues are sufficient to fundsuch expansion and our operations over the next twelve months, although we
are dependent on timely payments from our customers for projectsand work in process. However, we expect such
timely payments to continue. Material cash requirements for our rail inspection portal projectswill be satisfied within
the normal course of business including substantial upfront payments from our customers prior to starting
projects.However, for our edge data center business, upfront customer payments are not standard practice, and
therefore, alternative funding arrangementsmay be necessary. The Company may elect to purchase materials and
supplies in advance of contract award but where there is a high probabilityof that award.A Demand for our products
and services will be dependenton, among other things, market acceptance of our products and services, the technology
market in general, and general economic conditions,which are cyclical in nature. Because a major portion of our
activities is the receipt of revenues from the sales of our products andservices, our business operations may continue to
be challenged by our competitors and prolonged recession periods.A A 44A A LiquidityA Under Accounting
Codification ASC 205, Presentationof Financial Statementsa€”Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40) (3€eASC 205-404€),
the Company has the responsibility to evaluatewhether conditions and/or events raise substantial doubt about its ability
to meet its future financial obligations as they become duewithin one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued. As required by ASC 205-40, this evaluation shall initially nottake into consideration the potential mitigating
effects of plans that have not been fully implemented as of the date the financial statementsare issued. Management
has assessed the Companya€™s ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with the requirement of ASC205-
40.A As reflected in the accompanying consolidated financialstatements, the Company had a net loss of $7,358,143 for
the nine months ended September 30, 2024. During the same period, cash used inoperating activities was $6,200,147.
The working capital deficit and accumulated deficit as of September 30, 2024, were $1,600,154 and$70,961,695,
respectively. In previous financial reports, the Company had raised substantial doubt about continuing as a going
concern.This was principally due to a lack of working capital prior to underwritten offerings and private placements
which were completed during2022, 2023, and now the first, second, and third quarters of 2024 as well.A As previously
noted, the Company was successfulduring 2023 in raising gross proceeds of over $11,500,000 from the sale of Series E
and F Preferred Stock. Additionally, in the firstand second quarters of 2024, the Company raised gross proceeds of
$2,995,000 from the issuance of a combination of Series D and E PreferredStock (See Note 6). Additionally, during the
second quarter of 2024 the Company entered into an ATM Sales Agreement (the a€ceSalesAgreementa€) with
Ascendiant Capital Markets, LLC (the 4€ceSales Agenta€ or &€ ACMa<€) relating to the sale of ourcommon stock,
pursuant to the prospectus dated May 17, 2024. In accordance with the terms of the Sales Agreement, we may offer
and sellshares of our common stock bearing an aggregate offering price of up to $7,500,000 from time to time through
or to ACM, acting as an agentor principal. ATM sales commenced in the second quarter, andfrom June through October,
the Company has sold an average of $125,000 per month in Common Stock through the facility and we anticipatethis
monthly amount to continue over the next twelve months.A On July 22, 2024, the Company, through its whollyowned
subsidiary Duos Edge Al, Inc., entered into secured promissory notes totaling $2.2 million in funding with two
institutional investors.These notes mature on December 31, 2025, and bear an interest rate of 10% per annum, with all
principal and accrued interest due at maturity.The proceeds are designated exclusively for the equipment and services
required for the installation of the Company's previously announcededge data centers.A Inthe long run, the
continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the ability of the Company to continue executing
itsbusiness plan, generate enough revenue, and attain consistently profitable operations. Although the lingering effects
of the global pandemicrelated to the coronavirus (Covid-19) previously affected our operations, particularly in our
supply chain, we now believe that the supplychain lags have largely been abated. We have analyzed our cash flow under
a€cestress testa€ conditions and have determined thatwe have sufficient liquid assets on hand or available via the
capital markets to maintain operations for at least twelve months from theissuance date of this report.A A A In addition,
management has been taking and continuesto take actions including, but not limited to, elimination of certain costs that
do not contribute to short term revenue, and re-aligningboth management and staffing with a focus on improving
certain skill sets necessary to build growth and profitability and focusing productstrategy on opportunities across all
three lines of business that are likely to bear results in the relatively short term. The Companybelieves that, as
described above, it will have sufficient sources of working capital to meet its obligations over the following
twelvemonths. In the last twelve months the Company has experienced relatively steady contracted backlog as well as
seen positive signs fromnew commercial engagements that indicate improvements in future commercial opportunities



for both one-time capital and recurring servicesrevenues.A A 45A A A A Management believes that, at this time, the
conditionsin our market space with ongoing contract delays, the consequent need to procure certain materials in
advance of a binding contract andthe additional time needed to execute on new contracts previously reported have put
a strain on our cash reserves. However, proactivemanagement of our existing contracts, recent stock offerings and
private placements as well as the availability to raise capital via ourat-the-market offering indicate there is no
substantial doubt that the Company can continue as a going concern for a period of twelvemonths from the issuance
date of this report. We continue executing the plan to grow our business and achieve profitability. The Companymay
selectively look at opportunities for fund raising in the future. Management has extensively evaluated our requirements
for the nexttwelve months and has determined that the Company currently has sufficient cash and access to capital to
operate for at least that period.A While no assurance can be provided, management believesthat these actions provide
the opportunity for the Company to continue as a going concern and to grow its business and achieve profitabilitywith
access to additional capital funding. Ultimately the continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon
the abilityof the Company to continue executing the plan described above which was put in place in late 2022,
continued in 2023, and will continuein 2024 and beyond. These consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments related to the recoverability and classificationof recorded asset amounts and classification of liabilities that
might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a goingconcern.A Critical Accounting Estimates
A Intangible AssetsA In May 2024, the Company recorded an intangibleasset with a fair value of $11,161,428. This
asset represents non-monetary consideration received under a 5-year customer contract, inwhich the Company will
provide maintenance services to the customer. The intangible asset represents Digital Image data rights in theform of a
license agreement received by the Company from the customer.A Significant estimates relating to this transactionare
the initial valuation of this non-monetary transaction with the customer and the subsequent impairment
analysis.A Revenue RecognitionA The Company follows Accounting Standards Codification606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (a€eASC 606a€), that affects the timing of when certain types of revenues will berecognized. The basic
principles in ASC 606 include the following: a contract with a customer creates distinct contract assets and
performanceobligations, satisfaction of a performance obligation creates revenue, and a performance obligation is
satisfied upon transfer of controlto a good or service to a customer. A Revenue is recognized by evaluating our revenue
contractswith customers based on the five-step model under ASC 606:A A 1. Identify the contract with the customer;
A 2. 1dentify the performance obligations in the contract; Aﬂ 3. Determine the transaction price; A 4. Allocate the
transaction price to separate performance obligations; and A 5. Recognize revenue when (or as) each performance
obligation is satisfied. A The Company generates revenue from four sources:A 1. Technology Systems2. Al
Technologies3. Technical Support4. Consulting ServicesA A A Critical estimates relating to revenue recognitioninclude
the estimates of cost to complete projects which are utilized in the computation of percentage of completion.A A 46A
A A Stock Based CompensationA The Company accounts for employee and non-employeestock-based compensation in
accordance with ASC 718-10, 4€ceShare-Based Payment,a€ which requires the measurement and recognitionof
compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors including stock options,
restricted stock units,and employee stock purchases based on estimated fair values. The stock-based compensation
carries a graded vesting feature subject tothe condition of time of employment service with awarded stock-based
compensation tranches vesting evenly upon the anniversary date ofthe award.A The Company estimates the fair value
of stock optionsgranted using the Black-Scholes option-pricing formula. In accordance with ASC 718-10-35-8, the
Company elected to recognize the fairvalue of the stock award using the graded vesting method as time of employment
service is the criteria for vesting. The Companya€ ™ sdetermination of fair value using an option-pricing model is
affected by the stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number ofhighly subjective variables.A A The Company
estimates volatility based upon the historicalstock price of the Company and estimates the expected term for stock
options using the simplified method for employees and directors andthe contractual term for non-employees. The risk-
free rate is determined based upon the prevailing rate of United States Treasury securitieswith similar
maturities.A Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk.A Not applicable.A A A Item4. Controls
and Procedures.A Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresA With the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer,Chief Financial Officer and Controller, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term isdefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the a€eExchange Acta€)), as ofthe end of the period covered by this Report. Based upon such evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Controllerhave concluded that, as of the end of such period, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information requiredto be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported withinthe time
periods specified in the SECa€™ s rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our ChiefExecutive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Controller, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.A Changes in Internal Control over Financial ReportingA There were no changes in our internal
control overfinancial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during the
quarter ended September30, 2024 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal
control over financial reporting. A A 47A A A A A PART II OTHER INFORMATIONA Item 1. Legal Proceedings.A From
time to time, we may be involved in litigationrelating to claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of
business. We are currently not involved in any litigation thatwe believe could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or results of operations. There is no action, suit, proceeding,inquiry or investigation before or by any
court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, tothe knowledge of the
executive officers of our Company or any of our subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting our Company, our
commonstock, any of our subsidiaries or any of our Companya€™s or our subsidiariesa€™ officers or directors in their
capacities as such,in which an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect.A Item 1A. Risk Factors.A We
believe there are no changes that constitute materialchanges from the risk factors previously disclosed in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissionon April 1, 2024.Ahltem 2. Unregistered Sales
of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.A NoneA Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.A There has been no default
in the payment of principal,interest, sinking or purchase fund installment, or any other material default, with respect to
any indebtedness of the Company.A Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.A Not applicableA Item 5. Other
Information.A Trading PlansA During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, no directoror Section 16
officerA adoptedA orA terminatedA any Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangements or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangements(in
each case, as defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K). A A 48A A A Item 6. Exhibits.A Exhibit No. A Description A

A 3.12* A Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.12 to



the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 23,
2024). 4.1* A Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 23, 2024). 10.1* A
Form of Secured Promissory Note (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 23, 2024). 10.2* A Form of Security Agreement
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 23, 2024). 10.3* A Form of Guaranty (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July
23, 2024). 31.1* A Certification by the Principal Executive Officer of Registrant pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)). 31.2* A Certification by the Principal Financial Officer
of Registrant pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a). 32.1** A
Certification by the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200. 32.2%% A Certification by the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 101.INS* A Inline XBRL Instance Document (the
instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline
XBRL document) 101.SCH* A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL* A Inline XBRL Taxonomy
Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF* A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB* A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 101.PRE* A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Presentation Linkbase Document 104* A Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in
Exhibit 101) A * Filed** Furnished herewithA A 49A A A A SIGNATURESA Pursuant to the requirements of the
Securities ExchangeAct of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. A A A DUOS TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC. A Date: November 19, 2024 By:
/s/ Charles P. Ferry A Charles P. Ferry Chief Executive Officer A A Date: November 19, 2024 By: /s/ Adrian G.
Goldfarb A Adrian G. Goldfarb Chief Financial Officer AA 50A A A Exhibit 31.1A CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL
EXECUTIVE OFFICERPURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THESARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A I, Charles P. Ferry,
certify that:A 1.A A A AT have reviewed this quarterlyreport on Form 10-Q of Duos Technologies Group,

Inc.;A 2.A A A A Based on my knowledge, thisquarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statementsmade, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterlyreport;A 3.A A A A Based on
my knowledge, thefinancial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present
in all material respects the financialcondition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this quarterly report;A 4.A A A A The registrantd€™s othercertifying officer and I are responsible
for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange ActRules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for
the registrant and have:A a) A designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly for the period
in which this quarterly report is being prepared; A b) A designed such internal control over financial reporting, or
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; A c) A evaluated the effectiveness of the
registranta€™ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
A d) A disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; A 5.A A A A The registranta€™s othercertifying
officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit
committeeof the registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):A a) A all
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registranta€™s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registranta€™s auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and A b) A any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal controls over financial reporting. AA A A
Date: November 19, 2024 By: /s/ Charles P. Ferry A A Charles P. Ferry Chief Executive Officer A Exhibit

31.2A CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICERPURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THESARBANES-OXLEY
ACT OF 2002A I, Adrian G. Goldfarb, certify that:A 1.A A A A I have reviewed this quarterlyreport on Form 10-Q of Duos
Technologies Group, Inc.;A 2.A A A A Based on my knowledge, thisquarterly report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statementsmade, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
quarterlyreport;A 3.A A A A Based on my knowledge, thefinancial statements, and other financial information included
in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financialcondition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;A 4.A A A A The registranta€™s
othercertifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange ActRules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:A a) A designed such disclosure controls and
procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly for the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared; A b) A designed such
internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; A c) A
evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; A d) A disclosed in this report any change in the registrantd€™s internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™ s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; A 5.A A A A The



registranta€™s othercertifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registranta€™s
auditors and the audit committeeof registranta€™ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):A a) A all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect
the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrantd€™s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and A b) A any fraud, whether or not material,
that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal controls over
financial reporting. AA A A A Date: November 19, 2024 By: /s/ Adrian G. Goldfarb A A Adrian G. Goldfarb Chief
Financial Officer A EXHIBIT 32.1A A CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OFTHE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A In connection with this Quarterly Report of
Duos TechnologiesGroup, Inc. (the &€ceCompanya€), on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2024, as filed
with the U.S. Securities and ExchangeCommission on the date hereof, I, Charles P. Ferry, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify to the best of my knowledge, pursuantto 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:A (1) A Such Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30,
2024, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and A 2)
A The information contained in such Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2024, fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. A A A Date:
November 19, 2024 By: /s/ Charles P. Ferry A A A Charles P. Ferry A A A Chief Executive Officer A A A A EXHIBIT
32.2A CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OFTHE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A In connection with this Quarterly Report of Duos TechnologiesGroup, Inc. (the
a€ceCompanya€), on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2024, as filed with the U.S. Securities and
ExchangeCommission on the date hereof, I, Adrian G. Goldfarb, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify to the
best of my knowledge, pursuantto 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:A (1) A Such Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended Septembgr 30, 2024, fully complies with
the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and A (2) A The information
contained in such Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2024, fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operatlons of the Company. A A Date: November 19, 2024 By:
/s/ Adrian G. Goldfarb A A A Adrian G. Goldfarb A A A Chief Financial Officer A A A



